River Forest Public Library
Regular Board Meeting
March 19, 2019
7:30 pm
Agenda*

Call to Order
Roll Call
Vigitors and Guests

Ll e

Consent Agenda

a. Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting: February 19, 2019

b. February 2019 Warrants

c. February 2019 Revenue and Expense reports

d. February 28, 2019 Balance Sheet

e. 1 year (May 1, 2019-April 30, 2020) cleaning contract with Buildingstars in the amount of $23,988
f. Policy Revisions: Patrons: IV. Equipment and Computer Use; Staff: VIIL. Staff Computer Use

Bb. Communications

6. a. Patron Suggestions
b. Director’s Report

7. Pregident’s Report
8. New Business

a. Williams Architects-Andy Dogan
b. Vote on renovation project for public bidding
Accept RFPL Foundation donation for Children’s room project and authorize Library
Director to move forward with project planning.
d. Draft Strategic Plan Goals and Objectives 2.0
VRF Comprehensive Plan discussion
f. Committees: (Report/Discussion/Action)
i. Facility Committee
ii. Finance Committee
iii. Policy Committee
iv. RF Collaborative Committee

N

9. Old Business
a. 2019-20 Operating Budget - vote
b. 2019-20 Capital Budget - vote

10. Adjournment

* All topics on the Agenda are potential Action Items.
Vote: Board members who have suggestions about upcoming issues are welcome to contact the President, Chair or @ Commitiee
member. Suggestions will be noted, however, The Open Meetings Act, prohibits discussion outside of posted public meetings.



Meeting Minutes: Regular Board Meeting: February 19, 2019

Call to Order: At 7:32 pm President Smedinghoff called the regular meeting of the River Forest
Public Library Board of Trustees to order. The roll was taken:

* Trustees Present: Bevan, Calabrese-Berry, Dagli, Hill, Long, O’Connor, and Smedinghoff

* Also Present: Sue Quinn (RFPL Director) and Joanna Bertucci (RFPL Materials and
Business Services Manager)

Visitors and Guests
s Jim Hopkinson
s Karen Stierwalt

Consent Agenda

Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting: January 15, 2019

Minutes of the Special Board Meeting: February 7, 2019

January 2019 Warrants

January 2019 Revenue and Expense Reports

January 31, 2019 Balance Sheet

Boiler flue replacement in the amount of $5,830.00 (Operating Fund — Bldg. Maint./Repairs)
Self-check machine purchase in the amount of $10,524.00 (Capital Improvement Fund)
LED lighting upgrade in the amount of $6,224.29 (Capital Improvement Fund)

Policy Revisions; Patrons: XI. Public Comment;

Trustee Bylaw Revisions

A
g
(e’
=
ol
-y
=
4]
D
=
-
(=
=
-
C
=
g
n

TR RO R o

President Smedinghoff asked if Trustees would like any items removed from the consent agenda. Trustee
Hill requested that item i. Policy Revisions: Patrons: XI. Public Comment; be removed from the consent
agenda.

President Smedinghoff asked for a motion to approve the consent agenda, items a-h, j. Trustee Calabrese-
Berry moved to approve the consent agenda, items a-h,j, Trustee O'Connor seconded. Questions were
taken.

s Trustee Long had a question regarding the Card Connect bill in the amount of $36.11.
Ms. Bertucci explained that this bill is for fees related to the credit card machine.

o Trustee Long asked whether the annual $249/yr license fee for the proposed Self Check
machine purchase would remain constant for the life of the unit, Ms. Bertucci believed
that the $249/yr fee would be constant, but will reach out to the Bibliotheca rep to
confirm.

6toz ‘6T A1eniqa4




A roll call vote was taken to approve the Consent Agenda:
e Ayes: Bevan, Dagli, Calabrese-Berry, Hill, Long, O’'Connor, and Smedinghoff
s Abstain; Dagli from the 1/15/19 Minutes

Director’s Report
¢ Director Quinn provided an additional update on the LIRA claim, The following bills will

be paid by RFPL and will be reimbursed by our insurance company:
o Fox Valley Fire & Equipment: $8,251 — sprinkler system part replacement
o Oak Brook Mechanical: $6,764 — boiler circuit board replacement
o S&D Prime Maintenance: roughly $1,200 — various burst pipe repairs

The following bills will be paid by LIRA:
o Service One Restoration: $26,000 — mobile/temporary heating
o Stanton Mechanical: $955 — sewage ejector pump service

President’s Report
¢  Monthly RFPL Board Packets are now fully searchable.
e The next RFPL Foundation meeting will be held on Wednesday, March 13, 2019.

o President Smedinghoff reached out to the attorney for the RF Women’s Club. The
attorney is still working on shutting down the Foundation and it will be some time before
the RFPL Foundation receives the contemplated donation.

New Business:
Capital Budget review

» Trustee Bevan shared and reviewed the 2019-20 draft capital budget. Trustee Bevan
noted that the 2019-20 budget includes revenues sources for the capital budget. Last
year's capital budget did not include revenue sources. The capital budget will be voted
on with the operating budget at the March 19, 2019 Regular Meeting,.

Discontinue charging fines on overdue materials

¢ Trustees discussed RFPL administration’s recommendation to discontinue charging fines
on overdue materials.

Trustee Hill expressed concerns about eliminating overdue fines, particularly coupled
with the automatic renewals program. Trustee Hill felt that without the consequence of
overdue fines, users would keep items longer and RFPL wouldn’t have enough items on
the shelf. This undesirable effect would result in longer hold times and waitlists for
itema. Additionally, Trustee Hill noted that RFPL's collection development policies have
made a commitment to ordering additional copiea to meet hold lists and longer hold lists
would result in greater expense. Trustee Hill asked that staff brainatorm other ideas to
provide patrons with ahort-term amnesty. If approved, Trustee Hill expressed concern
that finea could not be re-instated in the future.



Trustee O’'Connor asked if RFPL would be an outlier in the library community if the
recommendation to discontinue fines was not approved. Ms. Bertucci responded that
RFPL wouldn’t be an outlier, but rather a trendsetter as fine free libraries are not
standard practice.

Trustees also discussed the possibility of shortening the length of time proposed by staff
(42 days) between when an item comes due and before it goes to billing. Trustee Bevan
noted that those decisions would be left to staff as they are at a procedural level.

Trustee O’Connor felt that removing fines on physical items creates a discrepancy
between the loan rules on physical ve. digital items. Trustee O’Connor noted that digital
items do not renew automatically and disappear from a user account on their due date.

After discussion, Trustee Calabrese-Berry made a motion to discontinue charging fines
on overdue materials, Trustee Bevan seconded and a roll call vote was taken:

o Ayes: Bevan, Calabrese-Berry, Dagli, Smedinghoff
o Naye: Hill, Long, O’Connor

Director Quinn commented that RFPL Administration will carefully consider next steps
regarding discontinuing overdue fines.

Draft Strategic Plan Goals and Objectives

Director Quinn presented Trustees with draft strategic plan goals and objectives and
discussed the planning process and survey results. Director Quinn noted that the survey
accomplished four goals: allowing the community an opportunity to give feedback,
marketing our services to residents, outreach to non-users, and a tool to get a sense of
what library programs and services were important to the community.

Trustees discussed the specific draft goals. Trustee Bevan felt that the draft goals are
too broad and that the plan overall is missing a goal specific to serving young children
through early literacy initiatives. Trustee Bevan was also concerned that the draft plan
does not hone the library’s focus in the way the previous plan did.

Trustee O’Connor suggested that perhaps the draft “Grow Community” and “Support
Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion” goals could be combined as they seem to be connected.

Trustees felt that the “Grow Collections” goal was too board.

Director Quinn suggested that the Board and Administration might benefit from a
planning day after the next Board meeting to continue fleshing out the goals and
objectives.

Committee Reports

® Facilities Committee

s Trustee Calabrese-Berry reported for the Facilities Committee,
s  The flue piping project work will take place on Friday, March 1:t. The
library will be closed to the public as the building heat will be shut off in
order to complete the work.

3



* Director Quinn and Ms. Bertucci will be meeting with Andy Dogan of
Williams Architects to discues next steps for the lobby renovation
project on 2/20.

¢ Finance Committee
e Trustee Bevan reported for the Finance Committee.
*  Trustee Bevan had previously asked Director Quinn to provide a

historical revenue and expense analysis. In response she prepared the
memo included in the 2/19 Board packet which provides 10 years of
historical data to help Trustees better understand RFPL’s current
financial position.

* Trustee Bevan explained that RFPL's revenues have grown slowly in
the past 10 years and sources of income, other than property taxes, have
been steadily declining. Additionally, operating expenses are increasing
at a faster rate, particularly in the personnel and facility maintenance
budget lines.

=  Trustee Bevan would like the RFPL Foundation to addreas planned
giving to RFPL as all donations, that were previously additional income
for the library, are now being directed to the Foundation.

= Additionally, RFPL will have to review its pay grade and scale structure
in light of the 2/19 passing of the IL. minimum wage increase.

® Policy Committea
s  Trustee Hill reported for the Policy Committee.
* Trustee Hill explained her request to pull item i. Policy Revisions:

Patrons: XI. Public Comment; from the 2/19/19 Consent Agenda. After
attending a Village of River Forest Board Meeting, Trustee Hill feels
that the Policy Committee should re-work the Public Comment policy
draft scheduled for a vote on 2/19. '

® Collaboration Committee
o  Trustee Long reported for the Collaboration Committee.
* The community calendar (www.rfhappenings.com) is up and running.
Trustee Long suggested that the Committee develop a bookmark to
market the online calendar to residents. Additionally, the group
brainstormed ideas for future collaborative projects.

Old Business
2019-20 draft Operating Budget

¢ There were no comments or questions regarding the 2019-20 draft operating budget.
Adjournment

o At 9:12 pm Trustee Bevan moved to adjourn the Regular Meeting. Trustee Long
seconded. The motion passed unanimously and the meeting was adjourned.



Reapectfully Submitted,

Joan O’ Connor
Secretary



| abed

¥5°69- TVLOL
¥5'5S- sweiBoid JSY - ucipeuuod selddns ﬂ-__o_ﬂuﬂ_._..._ou GLOZ/SLIE B ¢ 7T
990800 suonesed) 54O 82 TBZBYEE 1 MOTAVL 2 ¥IMvVE 6LOZN0ZIE szrol
¥6'chl- WIOL
ve'ehl- Jinpy - syoog Hj00q Jnpy 6L0ZI9LE  "9ES10S
850800 SuofesedQ J4dO 89 €E109Z0D MOTAVL B UDIVE  6L0Z/0C ¥ZrolL
or el WiOL
0z 29 ynpy - syoog jo0q INpY 6LOZPLZ  “UEEVEDZ
0z 29 unpy - syoog 1 - sjoog Inpy 6LOZMWLZ  EEPEOZ
850800 SuopRiedD 40 99 Z6869.20S T HOTAVL B ¥IMvE 6LOZI0ZZ £Z¥9l
60°902- 101
89'cg- linpy - Bjoog uud ynpy 60O TOEKEDZ
L ozL- inpy - Syoog Aeq Hiom - uud ynpy 6L0Z/9/T  OEVEDZ
'880800 suopaiedQ U0 99 T669208 T HOAVL B ¥IVE 6L0ZI0rZ 16€91
£¥¥ze- WIOL
ervee- Jewia| - UoNEWICINY Joweu| @ suoydeja) Aujuop 610ZPLWE  TTIH098S
950800 suoneedg SN0 89 Aemeleg suonoei3 - 121V GLOZOZRZ wel
1Z'96)- VL10L
1Z°98L- 80IAJAS - SOUBUIUIRIN eouBUIUIRY J0)eAST "qa 610ZMBLIE  OL0-ANI
890800 suopeiedQ Jud0 €9 ANVAINOD HOLVAITINOSHMIANY  6LOZ/0ZE LZroL
6V ize- TVLOL
6v'Lee- 80IMIBS - GOUBURMUIER Bupoyuol uLreny si4 Auepent BLOZGHZ “-9B0LIL
950800 suogesado 4O 99 960LLL S82IAJSS Uopoa)e(] UIETY sLozmozre 0zZrel
Jnoury pred Wnodyy otuey ouey ojeq wnn
610Z Arenuqay
TVYL3A LS LNV2IVM

Aseiqr ajjqn- 383104 JoAny



z efied

00°0ve- WIOL
00'0be- jsLua| - uopELIINTY 1swau| Apuoiy Gl0Z/S/E  SiZ9l6LL

990800 suopeledQ JudO g9 punj Bumoasy uopEIUNWWO) L0z 00¥91L
9’1z TLOL
09'Lzs- jolLequ| - uogewolny Jowaqu) Ayuopy 6L0ZALE 0ZLLI9

950800 Suopesad(y YJO GO sRowo) 6MOZIOZR 174 211
00°002- TV10L
00°002- OIAIS - SouBLSLIIRW [BAOLUGY 30| pUE MOUS elozreic £ssg

990800 Suofjied( O 69 sadpueg enbuee;) 6L0zZMZ 66c9t
95612 TVIOL
95'642- $394 |ebeueynsucy av pid pelud qu| ofeoyn qy (eBay 6102912 ""TG6E00

950800 suonesadp RidO 8 dnous eipejy eunqgpL oBeajyo 810ZH0ZRe LZ¥ol
£8°0€- TVIOL
€8°08- sefiley) sopuag 'seury $90) pUed Jpai)

"990800 suopeiedQ IO 99 Pauuodpie) 8L0ZIVIT Na
Z5'e58'L- Y10l
Zeegs’l- PIED JpaI)) [ETdUBUL] HIN wawded pred ypai) Arenver

990800 suopriedD IO g9 yueg [RIoURUld G - S8JJAJRS PIBD GLOZIELT 61¥9l
vaErl- TWi0L
yaCYL- sasuadx3 oSy - “WoN premy ujoour] | ‘Jeuuop o} obeen 6102/

950800 suopesed( 24O G2 Biequeyap Yieg 6L0THZIT 9Z¥8l
00052 TViOL
00-052- soiiddng eayy0 taded jeuuay so} Jeded Miaoey 6L0Z/SIT LIv6s

950800 suonesedQ 44O 89 sajbojouysa) ueaghen eLozmre 86¢91

unowy pred JUNCIYY owol BlueN Lo L |
- 610z Arenugey
1IVL13A LSIT LINVVYM

Azeiqr a1qnA 388104 JaARY



€ abeg

0go6e-

V10l
86'g- sweiBorg )SY - uogoseuuon seiddns wesfioud suopoeuuns
82501~ sweubold NSy - uogdauuon saiiddns wesBoud suopdeuuoy
£8201- uoea] - Jupd-uoN seumeb ospiA |
SZor- seyddng a0wo ilisy JojeuliE
G6'Pe- Sj{usAN Jud-UON juud uop 6L0Z/0/T  "3ISP00
980800 suopeiedp 440 99 uozeurypueq Aouol 39 61021972 ZL¥ol
00°152'8- TVLOL
00'152'8- Punj aaesey jepde) '8 Jepjuuds ‘eajaap Jejueasid moyoeq MON GLO0ZBLZ  “WZOONI
Z0Z69950800 IeNdes ido 19 Kiejeg g ap Aojiep xod 6LOZIOZIZ 89l
LE 686" WIOL
1S BE6' leysdi [emaual Je)sdi 6LOZMBIT  9l9VIS1
*'950800 suopeledp JudO €9 $30jAleS UopeULIO] 09SET sLozZisIZ g1vol
96°65- TvLOL
96'65- Addng - esuBusjueN }ow 29t 810zT/Sie 820/2
990800 suopesado IO 99 IUVMTEVH 39V S, 1388340 sLozore Z0¥9l
i TVLOL
99°0¢- sejddng eao woon[ealq Joj sayo 61026112
ezcl- UNpy - sweubosy sjealt 444 6LOZIBLRE
""980800 suopesado 4O g9 uey|inoH *4 Aiposog 6L0Z0ZIT 6Z¥ol
00°561'2- VIOL
00°G61'2Z- 20uaS - SoURLEJUIEI 6102 qed sdpueg Buwesys Areg 8I02/52  1¥8800
“*950800 suogesedO IJO g2 Auedwo) Bujues|) ajerduton SLOZIBT Lorsl
00'8g- IvioL
00°8¢- saBieyD) BOIARS "SOUI uopoauod Joue diis ysodag
960800 suopesado NidO g9 1823104 JOADY WEd e Jo jueg Ajunwwon GLOZIVLIZ wp
unowy ped Wunoasy owel ey aEeq wnyN
610z Aienuqay
TVL3A 1LSIT LINVHNEYM

Areiqry a1qn- yse104 JaAry



¥ obed

96'99Z°}- unpy - syoog s)j00q Ynpy 610Z/9/Z  8896V¥5Z9
82°200'1- HnpY - 008 Aeq Ao sooq ynpy 610Z/0/Z  1896V5T9
¥e'8L- Hnpy - cog Aeg Hion - mjooq Ynpy 610Z/972 VZekr0L9
9r've- uea] - oog sjooq use) 6L0ZT/OT  S0.8P5ZH
l0ge- uea| - sHoeg $300q ueay 610Z/9/C  PFE8YSZo
oF 2e- ussy - soog £j00q uee] 6102/972 £0/8¥5Z9
6Z'L1- uea] - s)oog £j00q uaaj 6L02/97Z 99EGKSZO
zZe'L1- uea) - $Hoog £300q USIL 6L0Z//Z  99E6VSZD
69°01- looyos e|ppiy - Soog jooa SN 6L0Z/97T  O0VBrSZO
ST L~ looy3s 8|PPIN - SHoog Hjood SN 6102972  SOVSrSZO
¥o°zZ1- I004DS 3PPIN - $Y00E jood SN 6L0ZZ  ©YE8YSTY
668 100425 3PPIA - SO sjood SN 6L0ZMOZ  POISYSZO
ra: gN B 100428 PP - SHoog sjood S 6L0Z/7Z  L9E6V529

950800 suoHesadO JudO €2 SedAIRS Aeiqr] weaBug 610292 ¥o¥ol
co'cas's- TVIOL
156pL'e- Jum Qe - UoNQIUOD NI ¥
20'phe'L- uonesueduioy sakojdwg qe4 - uogonpeq JHWI 33

960800 suopesedD JudO 89 ] SL0ZMZI [ u]
1z /80'2- TViol
vo'L8¥'L- SANI weunsnipy Syl - uognquguoy Jedojdwy
15'508- uopesuedwoy aAoidwg usunsnlpy N - uognquiuo) aakojdwz

850800 suopesadp NIJO 89 Jumi 6102/572 nNa
S8°01L1- VLOL
Sg0LlL- SIIAIBS - SUIBLGIUIBW 1£/5-1/¢ Buuoyuop uue)y seinbing 6102/572 8911

990800 suofeiad( O €9 WYV SIONITII 6L0ZI912 £oveL
0£'189'L- TVLOL
0£°189'}- ejdoo eydooH snoxyoayy Aienuep 6L0ZBLZ  £098CE06

""950800 suoneladQ JMd0 89 erdooy 61021022 [Ta -1
00°052- TIOL
00°052- Hnpy - sweiboid weiboud 7. ofeayo 61026112

“"9S0800 suoneddo RO 89 ozog Bayny  6LOZOZR 0¥l

junouwry pied NNy owonN oweN ajeq wnN
610z Aienugay
TVLIA LSIT LNVNVYM

Aseiqr 21jqn- 382104 JoARY



g ebeg

Z8'h- uee, - oo o009 usaL
va'1z- Anf -sx00g jood
09'6- A -8y00g 008
65°5Ze- AN -y0og sj00d [
LL9gL- Anr -sxoog syoog
69°01- Anr -syoog syoo0g 1
STl Anp -joog 4004
002L- Anr -8)oog $joog 1
£9'6g)- Anr -s3oog sxoog 1
592z Anp -8xoog] sjood 1
91'Zl- Anf -sxoog sjood
28°06- Anf -$00g) jood p
69°01- 100195 3jppIW - Hocq 84008 SW
892}~ 100495 e1ppIA - S00g $1008 SW
5CHi- 100498 SPPIY - SY00g $4008 SW
6Ll 1004SS SiPpIN - $Y00g ©j0og SW
8l z- 100UIS SPPIIY - $00g ©j00g SW
Sgvl- 10049 SIPPIN - Boog 008 SW
65’61 100UOS SIPPIN - £3008 94008 SW
69°0}- 100UOS SIPPIN - 00g 4008 SN
""950800 Suopesado RIJO B9 sedjaleg liesqry weaBuj

gl 'elv'e-

S6'€L- Unpy - y00g 4004 Ynpy
86°2L- Hnpy - 3009 $00q Unpy
£0'81- Unpy - $00g £300q Unpy
91'€l- Inpy - Hoog £400q INpY
9611 Inpy - oo £300q JNpy
ve'9l- wnpy - joog $400q Hnpy
zZ9 Wnpy - Djoog 400 Ynpy
¥e'9l- npy - &yo0g $400q Jnpy
Ly9e- Inpy - 008 1004 Jnpy
ge'9l- npy - yoog ®100q JnpY
9z Ll AN -8300g] sjood
95°92- Hnpy - $00g $400q NPy
£L9 Hnpy - x008 4009 Jinpy
Sz 02 inpy - syoog 4009 Unpy
8196 Inpy - yoog 1009 Inpy
zesh- iInpy - sjo0g £400q Ynpy
vE'9l- Unpy - s300g £00q Apy
812 Unpy - 3009 £j00q INpy
€0'22- Unpy - so0g 83009 Jnpy
%L1 linpy - s300g £300q Jnpy
8c'L)- Inpy - 009 4009 Ynpy
ge'oL- Iinpy - s00g $400q }npy
8r0)- unpy - 00 $100q Jnpy
918k} npy - 30089 4009 Inpy

Wnowy pred wncaay owejy swey
610z Arenige
V130 LSIT LNVYEVM

Aseiqp 211qn- 38610 JOARY

6L0ZBLEZ
610z/9L2
6HOZPLE
GlLoZRLE
6L0cmLE
6L0ZPLE
610%91E
610Z/9L7E
6loceLe
6L0Z/8LIT
6102/8LIZ
6102/9L/2
61028112
6102/8172
61028172
6LO0Z/8LIE
6L0Z/BLIT
6LozZelie
6L0ZALZ
6Lo0ZRLE

eloznee

6102/92
610292
6102/9/¢C
6107/9/T
6L0T/9T
8102197
610egmae
61028
610297¢
81021972
610z/9/C
6102/9/C
6102/9/C
61025972
61021972
6102/9/
61L02/97%2
6L0Z9E
6L0Z/E
6L0ZR/Z
6L0Za7T
8L0z/97C
80z
6102972
aeq

1816¥529
92Zrrolo
SCEPI0LY




9 ebeg

Aeiq 211qn- 383104 JoARy

1S9 npy - sjoog Sooq Inpy 6L0g/8lie
0L86- npy - sijoog 9jooq jinpy 6102/61 /2
1z 1% HNpY - $oog $j00q ynpy 6L0Z/6le
Syil- npy - sjoog 900G NPy 6L0Z/ELZ
69'€Z- inpy - sxjocg 9{00q Jnpy 610Z/6112
0691~ npy - sija0g a1 jo0q Jnpy 6102612
1162 Hnpy - ;mjoog S)j00q Jnpy 6102/6112
61'Gl- npy - sjoog sj00q Jnpy 6l0Z/61/Z
80Gl- npy - sioog S§ooq Inpy 18474, -1¥74
ZZ'S)- Hnpy - syoog S$)ooq ynpy 610Z/61/2
eIy npy - sHoog $Hjooq Ynpy BLOZ/BLIC
Fi Fit Inpy - sjoog $3ooq Ynpy 6102612
96711~ Inpy - 8)joog sxooq ynpy BLOC/6LE
VG- npy - sjoog S$Hooq ynpy 6102/61/2
Z0'9L- Inpy - sj00g $3o0q Inpy B6L0C/6LIZ
e 9L~ inpy - syoog 8jo0q Ynpy 6102612
9o Iinpy - syoo0g fjooq Ynpy 6L0Z/IBVE
e 9L Inpy - sjoog I $j009 }npy GLOZ/EL 2
cEPL- JInpy - )oog £300q )npy GHOZ/GLIT
ShSL- Inpy - syjoog £j00q }npy 610Z/6LIT
20'9l- Inpy - sjoog j00q Ynpy GLOZ/6LIT
ll- Inpy - s3jo00g £00q ¥npy 6L0Z/BLIT
8G9~ Jnpy - 83joog jooq ynpy 8LOZMELIZ
Fr A Jinpy - sxo0g Sjooq ynpy GLO0T/BLIZ
6901 npy - syoog Sjooq ynpy GLOZ/EBLIT
[A gl Unpy - syoog SHjooq ynpy 610Z/6LIT
8L¥l- Hnpy - sjoog $Hjooq ynpy 610Z/6LIT
gecl- Hnpy - syjoog $)jooq Jnpy 6102/6LZ
FAN S Hnpy - sjoog $H)ooq JYnpy 6102/6L/2
68'8¢- inpy - 8008 300G )npy 6102612
oE've- hpy - syoog 3004 Jnpy 610Z/8LIZ
.Gl Hnpy - sy00g )j00q Ynpy 610Z/ELIZ
99'Gl- inpy - ssoog 4004 Jnpy 6LOCZBLIT
81°G)- HNpY - $Hio0g SHOOq Jnpy 6028 LT
896 unpy - sHoog $Hooq ynpy 6LOT/GLIT
SZL- AN[ -$Hj00y sjoog 6LOZ/BLIT
96'6- AN -53j00g sjo00d r 6LOC/ELIE
S8'0l- Anp -sijoocg sjood r 6LOCAH LT
D o uaaj - sxooyg jooq uaal BLOZGLIZ
10ee usa) - sjoog jooq U3l BLOZGLIZ
STl ua3] - sjoog joog usa] BLOZMHILIZ
9'ee- usa] - sjoog sjoog usal 8LoZSLE
'~ uaa] - sjoog joog usal 8L0Z/S1LE
95'0L- Ua3] - sjoog 91008 uUsal 6LoZsLe
XA Ua3] - sxjoog SH00q US| 6L0ELe
80'Ge- uaa] - sjoog £300q U] 810zl
0s'LL- ua9] - sjoog j00q uea | 6102l
SZ'LL- uag] - syoog ajoog usal 6L0C/9LIC
sZ'LL- uaa] - syoog 9jocg Ul gLogpLE -
unoury pjed UNo2Yy owoN aueN aeq
610Z Aienugo4
TIVL3A 1S LNVHYVM




1 ebeg

8091~ WIOL
66°G- Kddng - esusuajuiepy onjB Azm)n
lool- sajjddng 200 SPIBD Xapuspoua 6102512

990800 Suoneiadp Judo a9 |2onyeg euueor 6LOZIO 8001
00009 WIOL
00°009- Unpy - swreibaiy Weouo) ebejuel uesuawny ysy| 6LOZIBLT

950800 suopesed) L0 €D Jeue) ebeyoy UROUGUNY ysy]  GLOZIOZIZ cevol
00001~ TViOL
0000}~ 8334 |eBepueynsuoy NSUOD Hd slozse  S610Z 3

880800 suopeiedQ HO €D aBp3 episul 61029 S0voL
9L 0LL'E- TVLIOL
Zeve- 10040 SPPIN - SHoog jood SW 610Z/6L  9E8EGSZ9
orGL- npy - syoog 1 - sj00q JInpy 6L0T/6LZ 16125529
€lge- ¥npy - sjoog a1 - syeoq Jnpy 6L0T/BLZ  92£05529
Zo0EL- inpy - syoog Hjooq Ynpy 6L0Z/BLIZ  [2E05529
[ TR inpy - syoog mHjooq Jnpy 6l0ZIBLIZ  ¥2205529
£Tee- Anpy - syoog DOOG Ynpy 6LOZELZ  SZE0SSTO
85 ANpy - syoog joaq Ynpy 6L0Z/6LZ  6Vi6VSZD
SE iy uNpy - syoog $j00q ynpy 6LOZGLIE  LSI6V5C9
gLl Hnpy - syoog $j00q ynpy BLOZGLIE  ZSL6V4529
8LG1- Hnpy - syjoog 1 - syoog ynpy 8L0Z/BLE  056V5T0
ogee- Hnpy - sjcog SH00q Ynpy 8LOZ/6LE  LLYEPSTO
e8°9)- Hnpy - syoog £300q yrpy S8LOZBLE  SL¥6PSTO
816 Hnpy - exoog £004q ynpy SL0T/BLT  9S0LPOLO
18°02- Hnpy - sxoog 004 Jnpy SL0ZBLT  #ZOLSST9
ZZsh- unpy - Sjood 004 Jnpy SL0Z6LT 91216529
svec- 1npy - syoog sjooq Ynpy 8l0Z6LT 02215529
£0'gl- npy - sHoog sj00q Ynpy 6LOZTIBLT 21216529
8roL- ¥npy - syoog aT sooq ynpy SLOZTBLZ  6LZLS5ZS
€826 }npy - syoog syooq ynpy 6L0Z/6LZ  1EBLGSZS
o8 21- Anpy - syoog jooq Ynpy 6L0Z/6L2  8OVEP0L9
reol- Anpy - syoog $300q Jnpy 6L0Z6LZ  PEBLSSZO
6528 Inpy - syoog $j00q ynpy 610T/BLIZ  GEBLSSZO
6z'89l- }NpY - syoog syooq ynpy 6I0Z/BLIE  ZEBLSSZO
or Hnpy - syoog syooq ynpy 6I0ZIBLIE  LO¥BP0L9

unowy pjed JUNOIYy owepN ueN ae|g wnN
610Z Arenugad
1IVL3A 1SIT LNVHNVYM

Aseiqr] 2)1qn- 382104 JOARY



g ebed

€86 ANPY Wd-UON ana Inpy 6L0Z/%Z OVZZBE96
6.0z ANPY WLL-ION SQAQ WNpY 6L0Z/9Z 226896
19°9.- SjIUSAN[ JUL--UON saaqar SL0ZTOE 20212696
o 1z- S)uaanp Wu4-UoN Aeynig r 6102/9%2 £10¥2696
A NPV Juud-UoN dooqoipy a9 ynpy 610202  SOZITEI6
Yo HNPY Juud-uoN ana ¥npy GIOT/OE  VOZ12696
$0°92- NPV Juud-uoN aAd dnpy GL0T/OZ  €0Z12696
vZer- UNPY JUUd-UON jo0d Ao npy 6l0Z//Z  60Z12896
0z'egl- NNPY Juud-uON SAAQ ¥NPY 6L0Z/9Z 90Z12B96
¥ocz- HNPY JulG-UON SOAQ ¥npy 6L0Z/97T  Z10¥2696
¥eee- NPV JUU-UON SAAQ Nnpy 6LOT/OT 10212696
zZL'es- NPV JuL4-UON SOAQ iNpY 6L02/97T  S1l0¥2696
10'z9¢e- NPy JUUd-UON SQAQ ANpY 6L02A7Z  Z0Z12696
666 NPV JuLd-UON omip Jueweoeidal 3oogqoIpny 6LOZSIZ  ¥£801596

850800 suonesadg JudO €2 3dVL 1SIMAIN 810z 80H01
62625}~ TIOL
00°SEY'L- Buguud 8jejpjoog Jewwng 6L0Z/ERZ  “ZEvZ Ol
62°C8- Bunuud NeINW'A SDIED SsSeuIsng 6L0T0ZE  TvivES8L

850800 SuopriedQ JudO =D s3jydess) voueury-piN 6LOZNZR sl
00°001- TVLOL
00°00})- unpy - swiesbald ludy @ Yuew uoissnasiq doog 6102/612

""850800 SuopRledy JuJd0 89 euer ‘AQM[ION  GLOZHOZRZ Y9l
00°661- TVIOL
00'661- “"uou asee] Jaido?) - Juewdinbg eseo] Jadon BL0ZSZ  "LZL9IE

990800 suofjeiedQ Jud0 99 23U JOIWIBId ENOULN BHUOY 6LOZ/9/T L0¥9L
18°8b1- TVLOL
28°8¥1- (urew ‘ebesn) suroey Adod eBesr) Jaidop Arenuer 610Z/9VC  ~BES006

850800 suopeiedp NILO S SUOMN|OS SSSUSNG BYOUW BIUOY  GHIZHIZT SEhol
62896 }- WVIOL
TN $694 [pboquElnsSucD  “piq [Spoluay pue Jsajoid 21ignd Y Jnsuoy 61026172 059002

850800 suopeiedO IO €D QL7 ‘SNDINIr 2 3NOHL ‘NI 6102022 verelL

junoury preg uno2sy owep sumyN aeq umny
610Z Aieruqe
1vL13A 1SIT LNVHNYM

Aseiqp] o11qnd )se104 JoARy



6 obed

(AR TN 5
LLyoL's eaAes - BaLBUANUIEN 81/1€/1 obeno segog
950800 suonesado JHJ0 52 "] "SODjAIRS [RIURYIOH NOOoIE YED
60'G96-
60596~ 1eeH oo
*"950800 SUoprIedO DO 89 SV HOJIN
GZ'EE6')-
666 INPY JULi-UON 28Ip JusWoEdel yooqoipne Ynpy
zeeol- NPV JuL4-UON SQAQ JPpY
£5¥al- HNPY Juud-UoN saaad Aeq Ayom
oFEct- NPy WiLid-UoN SOAQ INpY
6.0z NPV JUd-UON SAAT NPy
62'02- NPV Juud-uoN SAAT Inpy
82z NPV JuLL-UON Aayn|g ynpy
8z Ze- WNPY Juud-uoN Keynig Aeq A
80°Z5 ANPY lid-uoN SCAQ Aeq Ao
800~ ANpY Juud-uoN saAd Inpy
Br'ee- UNPY Wiid-uoN syo0g 0D UNpY
e85 ANPY Wud-uoN SAAQ HnpY
LI ANPY uLg-UON SAAQ WnpY
ragl- UNPY JLd-UON aAad WnpY
veee- NPy upd-uoN Keynig ynpy
G6'6F- NPV uud-UoN $q9 Jueweoeiday JNpy
sreg- HNPY Juud-UoN jooqoipny a9 Unpy
0Z'92Z2- NPV JU4-UON yooqoipny g Unpy
¥eLL- HPPY JUL-UON SO MENY Ynpy
e gl- NNpY JuUd-UON and unpy
£oor NPV JUNd-UON aAa ynpy
€805 NPy JUUG-LON aAa ¥npy
190l NPy Juud-uoN SAAQ knpy
20°00L- NPy JLA-UON Aeg bom unpy
¥Z'951- NPV JUL-ION Aeq Lo unpy
950800 Suoneiedo 2O 89 AdVL LSAMAIN
gLzel't-
266" HRPY JUL-UON Hooqopny Ao ynpy
b6t HNPY JuLd-UON aAd npy
vz 6b- YNPY JUL-UON 3ooqoipny g2 Ynpy
ool ANPV Juid-ucN Aeynig ynpy
unowy ped NS0y owon SuwEN
610z Areruqo
1IV.L3A 1LSIT7 LNVHVM

Aieagi o11qnA 389104 J0ARy

6L0z/8LE
6LOZ/ZR

6HzSE

610Z™LE
6l0TeHE
GloToLE
6:02/8LIT
610281/
6LozmLE
6LoZRLE
610201
6lLoZoLe
eLoz/eLie
éLoz/eLic
eLoz/elie
eloz/9lie
6loZ/9lT
i1 1] ¥4
L] ¥rd
81020LE
6L0ZPIZ
GL0ZPMT
6102912
61021912
610zP12
6102012
61020
610ZPLIE

610zinze

610Z/9T
610¢/RrE
6L0Z/A/T
610Z/9/C

VLOL
€87l

WIOL

6918896
12518096
81026896




SEvLL- TVIOL
SEPLL- aojueg jjoiked 61/ag/e uny jKuked

990800 suopmiedQ JudO 89 ALIDOTAYd 610Z/9Z1T wna
18°1ve- TVIOL
oo'bez- aolag [joifeg Buisseaosd Za pud JBOA 8102
19°211- 833G [joifed Buisseoald ||ouked G172

""950800 suonRIAdO SO 89 ALIDOTAYd  GLOZSER wp
¥2'806'0- WIOL
o~ S/EJIPEIN JSY - UDHIFUUDD "W SUOHIIULOD - UBPEIN LOO] ArigH]
9z 2L dx3 areojpopy seakojdws - aredpeyy uofiod Alsigr]
06'1- VI )ISY - uofoeuuo)  Aojdwz SUCROBULOS - WO UORIO ] Aleigr
LLLBS - VoI saakopdw3 - yol4 uoiod Aexqr
o8¢- SIYIE[ES HSY - UOHOBULIOD suogonpaq Xe | 33 suogoduuoD
207866 uopesuedwios) eekojdwz suofenpaq xe| eafo|dwg

950800 suoneiedp JudO 89 ALIDOTAVd SHOZISWT wp
AL TVLIOL
G 9Z- SIUE[ES HSV - LORIMUCD uogesuadwos sakojdurg suogdouuon
8v'c10'02 uopesusdwion sakojdwg uogesuadwo?) sakojdurg

~'990800 SuopesedQ 4O 8D ALIDOAVd 8LOZRIR wp
05°6b) 2 IVLOL
S6'e0e" SjlusAnf - Juejuone S)00qoipiye @ Hooge sueipiiyd GL0ZOLE " ORSOLD
Fig: uea) - Jusjuooe 80080 Uad )] 6L0Z/9LZ  Ta8ssLo
G265E"}- ANPY - JueUoDR SHjooge Ynpy 6LOZ/LT  “"DBSSID
£C'66¢- ues| - USUODS SHOOGOIPNYD § SHO0GE UII) GLOZPLT  ""DBSBID

940800 sSuopeiedQ SudO 8D SAlHEAD  BLOZIOTIZ &5v91
15889 WIOL
25468 Pequo) JSiucuaEU] WNoA  * 10BQUOY) ISUoRUaAISIU] LNo A JeNEND) puZ 610Zvest

850800 Suopesado L0 59 SIDIAYIS HLNOA dIHENMOL SHVd VO 6L0Z/BT oLl

Wunowy pred unoday owelN ajeq wnN
610z Aseruqey
TIVL3Q LSIT7 INVYYYM

Aseiqry 21jqnA 3seso soary



1) efeg

00°0L)- Wi0L
00°0LL- ¥npy - sweiboud weiBold seuoLIBKY AL BDO5L 6LO0Z/6LIT
'950800 suoneiedd JudO g9 1edoo) uerelg 6L0Z0TR (151!
98°'8.% TV10L
g6'ze- saddns Jeidony Jeded Adon)
92°90Z- sejddng eoo  “saded yu ‘seuaneq ‘lodded @ )es 'sleqe
ZL68)- Addng - soueusuieny 1ejsnp Jeded Joji0] ‘siwecy Jeded 6L0Z/S/Z  "TGS001
850800 suoperedp 44O g9 se|das 6L0ZMRIT eIyl
009 WIOL
009t 891ABG - IDUBUDJUIEW |onuod jsad AyuouHg 6102/5/8  GSE9lEl
990800 suopeled( JudO 8 wewebeuew 1584 uesselpIwg 8109 Zi¥el
8Z'elT'L- WIOL
60859 891AI8G - FDUBUSIUIBIN edid 1sing - ysiA Aouabilews 6L0Z/9V/T 508
v Aiddng - eaueusjuien saddns aoueuejey
00065~ ajAleg - esuBLAUIIBIN SUSIA eoUBLIBUIEWN Ayuowng 6L02/8Le 00€o8
850800 suopeiedQ JNd40 €D *2U| ‘eduBUBUIEN JWEHL 0 B S 6LOZH0ZIT o9l
8z v TVLOL
9T oSG [Josked »¥oeyo puncibiyoeq 610257 OI8LYE
890800 suopetad( O 99 sPejeidosd 81ozIviT 11r0l
60°'926'9- TVLOL
1E°612¢ g aredipaiy uonsod auedpegy 1e/fojdwg
PLZ29'1- voId uogHod yoid sedoidws
89926 uogesuedwo) sakopdwz uogonpap xe| eafojdwg
"850800 suopeiedO 40 €9 ALIDOTAVd GLOZMT wa
L218Z'0z- TWLOL
LLvez'oz- uonesuadwo?) askoilwg uonesuedwon safojdwy
950800 suopsliedp SO G3 ALIDOTAVd eLouezZ na
unowy pred unoaoy ouay aury aeg ~ wnp
6102 Aienuqey
TIVL3A 1S1T LNVYNVYM

Aiexqp 9l 350104 J9ATY



Z) abed

£9°'129'2-
£9°LI9'T- pung anesey |epded a581d SUSLNI0Q UORINLSUDD

Z0Z69950800 [Aded J440 6D SN SWE|IM
8T'80¥'S-
8E25Z- Ieeq uofpiod (epuaq Jafoidwg
eSerz'e asueInsy| yyesH uciuod yyesy Jakodwg
1£°206')- uonesuadwoy eako|duig uononpep siysuag eelordws

890800 suopeiedQ 1O €9 LSTHOL MIAN 20 IOVTIA
rreve-
vreve- Jajep 8102 26 pue AON |ng JeqBp

830800 suopesed( J4d0 €I 1STHOL MIAN 40 IOVTIA
007054~
00°052- yoddng [esiuyse yoddng 1] qa4y

950800 suopesedp O 89 "ONI1 ‘SIDIAMTS MALNdNOD TILLYSNIA
SLZLL'e-
SLZLL'E- pun4 anesey lepdeD  -ibdn Bunybry Joold puz pawo) 10) ysodeq

Z0ZEBYS0R00 FENdeD Jud0 8D O£ SUCPNIOS SIRUIEISNS BPUBA
000

980800 suopeiedo M40 HD QIoA O£ SUOON|OS AqEURISNS SpIBA
6582
85°92Z- Axddng - aoueuajuiep yeuw a9

"'950800 suopeiedp MO G uung) eng
* Junowy pred Junoasy owop sweN

610z lierugay
TIVL3A LSIT LNYVRAVYM

Areiqr alqnd Jse104 JaAlY

610Z/SE
6LozRE

6lozmeere ¢

6lLoese
GLOZIOIT

6102/S1T
GLOZIOR

6LoZmere
GlozreziT

6LoZISE
GLOTRR

WIOL
1968100

491

TW1OL

£l

VLOL

911100

91vol

VIOL
L6ES|

91¥91

TV10L

691

WiOL

™LOL

rivol



£V LOG6'L

[ adeq

X 6¥ve Hnpy - sumiSory sosradeg yupy AVIIE VIENVd 610T/1%10
¥6T88°1 X 861€ nnpy - sueiSoud sasuadxs ynpy avadg VEINvd 6I0TIT10
960581 X 6611 INPY - SHEISoId:sasuddxH ImpY QvHIad VIaNvd 6107/31/10
L6BES°] X 09k APV - swesSorg:sesuadxy ynpy WO NOZVIV 610Z/91/10
LEWILT X 00°sE HOpY - sweSoud:sosmder Ippy TVdAVd SL0T/SI/IO
LEGTLT X 000 Hnpy - suriBord:sosuadvs ynpy woo As)q 610Z/S1/10
LE669°1 X ST691 FISWISTHRAPY sasUadig 2010 sudig 158 GTOTHI/TO
AR X oSz ImpY - SpEOIpoLasasuadxy Jnpy HANNERLL ODVOIHD 610TFI/T0
TOLEF'T X wE Anf - supBosTsastadyy srmang 5po0] [amaf 610T+1/10
83'ELY'] X €TLS Anf - suraiory:sasuadxy apoang ONIAVIL TVLNATHO S10T¥1/10
S99THL X 008¢ NPV - sumesFouy:sesuahey yrpy TVdAVd GIOT/EIN0
SO'BLET X £916 Anf - Swesdolg:sasuadyg ojuoang WOY'BIOARID) 610T/T1/10
00°L8T°T X s8¥E ™ [BuOIsEya1y-sosuadNe [BuDIssgoIq (43 140) G10T/20/10
SITSTT X L60F Ynpy - suerdor:sesuadg npy AV VIEINVd 610Z/80/10
8T'IIZ1 X S60L NBWRSERAPY sasuadig 000 SUOHOTION GARISC] GL0T/30/10
€OV X 006k U] SIS0l sosusdyy 0], Ll e 610TLO/D
B ARy "5 Ry P Junoxy s0hsg T amq

Jou/saqumy ‘odA[, amq 4q paylesg
610%/1€/10 YSnonp 610Z/L0/10 Wl
PIED HPAL) [eouRUL] A 8130y

Nd IT-T 610T/¥/€

ATeIQF] OTqN.T 1S210,] JOATY



Zadeg

TSES8°T 00°6¥1 - GOTRIIOHTY sasuady uopBwoITY Spojglag 610T/1€/10
TS HOLT LBLI JSWRSIHAAPYsasuadxg 20150 Jooqaoe] S10T1E/10
$9'989°1 65'€T NPV - sRoog:sasnadxy ypy WO NOZVIY 610TLUTO
90°£99°1 00°011 = yusudinbyy: sommpuadiey enden) dnogpa] 610T/5T/10
S0°€5S°T ST69I1 WSUSSTHOAPY :5asudXE 2950 sudg 1584 G100
19°€3€°1 95871 HNPY - sxoogsasexdxy ympy g CAR (80 610THUT0
SEVT smmiord iy poog sweiSord MY - voNoSUnoY)
199 sumiSoxd 305 pocg U] ~sumIForg

STESTT 0L -ds- SPo0] jamaf 610TTT0
ETHRTT +8°59 NnpY - swerSos ] sasuadyr Jmpy TYJAVd ST0THT/T0
6E311°1 00T " [RUOISSIJaL]:sosundxy euoigsajaly WO HGIIIAT 610T¥T10
6E'€60°T ISTS1 IANPY - sjoog:sosuadyy Ynpy NOD'NOZVIAV 610TTU10
8W1H6 66°ST aBmso:sesudxg mo mod sdumng 610T/Z/10
68676 69°601 "V - BOROSTUC)-NSY - BORONIC)) ONIQVEL TVLNAO e1ozTTno
0T918 £T160°1 10269950800 suoned() THJO €D  ~ [RIOURML] fA - SOOIAIG PIE) LLEIT 6107110
Nuzpeg wamieg ) omapy WNORY skng Y e | aq
Fni/mquny ‘dAy, ‘e Ag papog

S1OT/LE/10 ¥SnoIgy 610Z/L0/10 WoLY

PIED NIPAL) EOUBUL] G J9ISIBoy

ATRIQI] OFQN.T 1S210,] IOATY

Wd 1T-T 610T/¥/E
f



%LITL 00°000°L¥E°T eIT'796 $ | 896901 $ :asuadxy
%98°19 00°000°L¥E°T 6L0°628 $ | 9g9'est $ :9modu]
%SG 19 00°000°L¥8°1 6L0°628 $ | 92eg°es1 $ Tero,
%¥% 001 00°00¢ 109 $|11 $ SUI0OU] IS
%00°0 00°008‘¢ - $ JUSTLMOPUY UOL}BpUNo, AJrunwuwoy))
%ET°98 00°000'% ab¥'e $|- $ 19710 ‘SjUBIY)
%88°'291 00°009°8 G96°CT $]- $ Juery) epde) a9 q I1
%9901 00°0003T 6L3'T $]29 $ S
%I 91T 00°000°3T 186'CT $|zv1‘t $ - J8azagu]
%00°0LT 00°008 . 019 $1|- $ | wooy unespy ‘eordg Areiqry ‘sjerusy
%86°30T 00°000F LETY $|e19 $ aNuaAYY SuIqIR]y Ado)
%ES"60T 00009 8%9 $ |97 $ so[eg Joog
%Ea 18 00°000°S 9Fy'G $[1L1 $ pesmquiray syoogq 1807
%8L'GL 00°000°L q08‘g $ | 9901 $ 893IeY) S0IAIAG ‘SIULY
%8829 00°000%T 2088 $|- $ 89xe ], Jusumade|dey Ajredorg dio)
%GQ°LL 00°008°L 6%0°9 $|- $ JuRly) WEII0LJ SUONIUUO))
%.L¥'09 00°000°0L2°T T10°89L $ | 097281 $ saxB], Ayzedoig
1P8png Jo % 61028103 aIx GT-ATeniqag Junowy

6103 Axeniqo - Ja0doy] INUIAIY
6103 ‘08 [14dy - 810 ‘T ABJ :Teax [eosiq

ATReaqry IgN g 15030, 194




0070059 $ | [%06'68 £78'0 AN 3 (sourzuSely) speotporaod Juilg
00°00SZL $ | |%LezL 6929 $ [ 18902 $ sjoog
00°00%°L8 $ | [%80°02 022’19 $ 909 $ sa01a30g 120ddng Joq1Q WI0],
00°009'3 $ | [%09'6L 0661 $ 1] 661 [ 80980 JUTIBRY Ldo)y
000001 $ | [%00'63 063 I $ sdiqsiequiajy pue JuruTes, 9ejeniy,
0000971 $ [[%690L 98Z 01 $ | [ 9%6 $ jeuzeju]/euoydaeg,
00°009F $ | [%00°09 09L% AN $ 308300 JSTUOTIUSATNT] YINOL
00°0008 $ | [%9988 0992 ANECE $ Sa0IATAG JuomAc[dury pue [JorAeg
00°000°Z 3 | [%sv96 05,9 $1T- $ 809, yIpiy
000098 $ | [%%z 68 €13t NE $ Kxaarjo(] 2 offwsog
00°0009 $ [ [%6L7L LSVF $ [ [8261T 3 99,] [E3¢]/599,] JUE}NEUO))
00°005 3¢ $ [ [%9699 29LT3 $ [ (o9} $ TOT}BI)STATWIPY UOHemOjny
00°000°Z1 $ | (%0929 009°'L $||ogs $ J0ddng T8I,
00'008 $ | [%86°0%- (829 $ [[(og2) $ (soLTBIqY] NVMS) 8301AT8G ] Pu® 'T11
00°008°9¥ $ | [%¥eoL Z10°Ee A $ SIRaZ0 ] puw savjateg Jaoddng (930,
0000888 $ | [%oz 0L 20T'LT $ | [vire $ Sure1501J 18307,
00°008'L $ | |%26z9 LZTF $|]618 $ surezdolj SUONIdTIO])
00000 $ | %096 6L $11- $ SWEB1301] [B10edg
00°000°01 $ [ [%zcss 2908 g [[omvT $ SureIdodg NPy
00°000°2 1%Lty 308°€ $[1e¥ $ SweIdoL] Uee],
0000021 8 | [%16°68 68L0T $(|16¥ 3 SWEIH01] §USIPIN)
00°000°8 $ | |%L81L 6¥L°Q $ | | 8391 $ JURUSIIISAPY pU Junjuli [8)0],
00°000°¢ g | [%e9Z¥ 631 $1(- $ Sursnzoapy
00°000°G ¢ | [%1¥'68 0L¥'¥ $ 1| 8391 $ ageRIyooq/3urjuLLy
00°00¥L98 $ | [%LE 9L 619699 S | | e¥6°99 $ [oUU0BIdg [)0],
00°000°0T $ | [%€zc¥ 2297 $[]- $ jusmdoeaa(] [EUOEAJOL]
00°00%'S $ | [%ar6L 169% $ $ sen(] drgsasquisjy
00°000°€ $ | [%0%°6v o9LF 1 $1T- $ Sumre1], Jeis
00°000°8% $ | [%eE8TL 199'68 $ || a96e $ YOI A/eTeatpajy
00°000'LS $ [ [%187L EVOEF $[|1eee 3 TaNT
00°000°09 $ | [%9g°6S ev2 es §$ |1 2oa%s $ 958JaA0)) SOUCINSU] YI[6OF [BIIPAJy
007000989 $ | |%LILL 869'829 $ [| 68280 3 BOLIBTRS % SASBA |
61/82/3 J0 &8 %8
1a8png §1-81 ja8png % [y QLA [eosTy 6103 Arenaqoy

6107 ‘08 [1ady - 810Z T A¥Iy :awox [eosiy

610% Axenaqa - 130day asuadxy - ATRIGIT I[N JSII0] AATY

S[uEeyely A1eiqr]

saolAxeg aoddng J9130)

Sooureifioa ]

SursnzaApy puw Sunuiag
8001AXog Jaoddng

Jeuuosiog

sasuodxy



| 00°000°L¥ET  § [ [%99T0 |] 6L0°628 $ | | o9g‘as1 $ 1| swoou| [wy0], |
[ 00'000°2¥8°T § | [%LoTL [811%96  $ [[se6'001 &[] sesuadxy [¥30,|
| o0°000°ay $ | [%000 [ I1- $|| PUN] aAI986Y Jusmmasczdur] repde))|
[ 007000'202°T  § [ |%S0FL [e1T'796 8 [[ 896901  § [] sosuadxy Suryrzad() [910|
[o0008001  § [ [%ig¥L [ eotoL $ | [18v%l $ [] WS EUVH SOIIIO] [SI0L]
00°009°TT $ | [%¥8c9 161°9 $|!- $ eanjuan,] puw jusmdmby [#10],
00°000'3 $ | [%¥s08 L19T $ $ 08T A30[0uToa],
00'009°6 $ | [wersy PLSV $ $ (pamyrum,] % Juemdmby) yuewdmby
0000978 $ | [%vo'eL 968°L9 $ || 12%%1 $ 8ad]AJog Ayrrow,] (W10,
00009 $ | [%0878 101G $[|evt $ alBe[) pue SoUBUGYUTE] J81d0))|
00'000°6 $ | [%ve a9 1.8'G $ || 996 $ S8[) [eIn}BN
000002 $ [ [%LL Lo 9geT $[]eve $ IBM
00°000°09 $ | %01 08 190°8¥ $ | [ #9011 $ SOIAISg [FIPO}SN]) PUB SIUBLAUTBY
00°000°T1 $ | [%66'68 6626 $]]- $ e0uWEmMET]
00°008F $ | [%gz'99 1818 $ |]Le $ safddng Ayioe ] (30,
00°008'F% $ [ [wez g9 1E1'8 $[[r2e $ sorddng % S[eLerEly SupIng
| 00’0009 $ | [%89'86 IT ez6’¥ $ []- $]] S2ATIFIIU] JLENuIIE|
00'00gF6T  $ [[%ie0L ¥L8'981  $ [ | 298’61 $ sarddng 7 s[uae)ely Areaqry [@10],
00°000°ST $ | |%08'%g 690°L $|] 128 $ safpddng s0ggQ) (810,
000092 $ | [%9809 60S°T $]]ooz $ (Suone]ay UoXjEq sepnyur) sesusdxy 8T
00°008°T $ | [%s869 SLL $[]es $ serddng Supuig puy Ado)
00°000°G $ | [%10°09 0052 $l]- $ sofddng AxeIqry
007002V $ | [%01F%9 ZLTT $||ss $ ser[ddng e0gzQ
00008181  § [ [%29TL o18'6gL  § [ [ 170%61 $ S[RLINBR ATRIqI] [#10],
00°000°88 $ | |%81'8L 18198 $|]g05e $ (e ‘8@ "8QAQ) [ENSIA OTpIY 36NOH-U]
00700079 $ | |%6879 er0'ge $[oLL's $ | | orenwysemom/sounRREw,R00q I3[0 - JURTO]-F SUIUQ
00°009°S1 $ | [%996L OEE"ZT $1]- $ | | suondudeqng eseq vI8( R o0, Surwrea] sunuy

sanjruam,y % yuomdinbgy

8e01AISg ANIoR|

sorddng Loeg
mImOBUUR seNI[IoN]

seAneTIIU] oifiejenygy

sorddng so1g() pue Arsaqry



FO'ELE 6102/8%/¢ Jsaxaju]

atmoouy
8L¥E0FT
SIZITe suonnog s[qBUTEISNS apIap  6108/83/3 691
001938 £33yeg 7 oI AST[BA X04  GT10%/03/3 891
€9'7.9 SJNYOIY WETITM 610¢/9/¢ L9T
UOHALIDSa(] / 10pUBA oq H99Y))
sosuadxyy

¥6'0I8  Suppey) reyde) JYJO €0
10°'126°6LE aazesey Te11de) SOI
610%/2 JO St sooue[eq JUNodIY 2AI983Y [eyde)

6102 ‘0¢ 111dV - 8103 ‘T LBy :Ieox [eoSL]
610% ATBNnIqag - punyj 2AIISIY ej1de)- Axexqry STqnJ 1S3J0] ISAIY



River Forest Public Library

Balance Sheet

As of February 28, 2019
ASSETS

Current Assets
CHECKING/SAVINGS - CPERATIONS ACCOUNT
Operations Current
ICS Opertions 805669201
CB OPRF Operations 805689201
Pety Cash

TOTAL Operations Gurrent

Operations Midterm Reserves
OP CD 26 WK 1022205981
OP CD 1 YEAR 1021700556

TOTAL Operations Midterm Reserves

Operations Long Term Reserves
OP CD 2 YEAR 1020448543
OP CD 3 YEAR 1020448578
OP CD 3 YEAR 1021670576
OP CD 5 YEAR 1020450904
OP CD 5 YEAR 1021870738

TOTAL Operations Long Term Reserves
TOTAL OPERATIONS ACCOUNT

CHECKING/SAVINGS - CAPITAL ACCOUNT
ICS Capital 805669202
CB OPRF Capital 805668202
TOTAL CAPITAL ACCOUNT

TOTAL CURRENT CHECKING/SAVINGS
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabliitles
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Total Accounts Payable

Credit Cards
MB Financfal Credit Card
Total Credit Cards

Total Current Liabllitles

Equity
Opening Bal Equity
Retained Earnings
Net Income

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

2/28/2019

342,834.41
38,258.12
40,00

381,132.53
75,788.54
1583,741.51
229,528.05
61,385.97
61,570.31
60,847.89
61,871.72
60,897.15
306,583.04
917,243.62
379,821.01

810.94
380,731.95

1,297,976.57

1,287,975.57

1,297,976.57

|

41.11
(74111)

285.50
895.50

254.38

254.39

821,884.15
678,498.55
202 661.52

1,297,721.18

1,297,976.67

#



4:13 PM River Forest Public Library

03/05/19 Reconciliation Detalil
Petty Cash, Period Ending 02/28/2019

Type Date Num Name Cir Amount Balance
Beginning Balance 40.00
Cleared Balance 40.00
Register Balance as of 02/28/2019 . - 40.00
Ending Balance 40.00

Page 1



MEMO

To: RFPL Board of Trustees

From: Joanna Bertucci, Materials and Business Services Manager
Date: March 11, 2019

RE: 2019-2020 RFPL cleaning contract award recommendation

On April 30, 2019, RFPL’s two year contract with Complete Cleaning Company expires. In
an effort to potentially reduce the cost of cleaning services, Director Quinn asked that I put
out an RFP to cleaning companies.

We sent the RFP to 5 firms and received 4 responses. The bidders and their quotes are
listed below:

Quality Maintenance Systems $17,880/ year
Buildingstars Operations, Inc. $23,988/vear
Complete Cleaning Company $29,220/year
Cleanique Services : $86,000/year

After checking references on the two low bidders, I am recommending that RFPL award the
2019-2020 cleaning contract to Buildingstars Operations, Inc. Although they were not the
lowest bidder, their reference check ranked higher than the lowest bidder, Quality
Maintenance Systema.

Director Quinn sent the contract to Greg Smith of Klein, Thorpe and Jenkins for attorney
review and his changes are incorporated into the attached contract.

Awarding the contract to Buildingstars Operations, Inc. will result in a $5,232 savings for
the maintenance — service budget line for FY 19-20.




BUILDINGSTARS SERVICE AGREEMENT

THIS SERVICE AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made this day of , 2018 by
and between Bulldingstars Operations, Inc. or It assigns, 1401 Branding Avenue, Downers Grave, lllinois 60515
("Buildingstars”) and the Board of Library Trustees of the Village of River Forest, an llinols local library, 735 Lathrop
Avenue, River Forest, lllinois 60305 {"Customer”).

1.
1.1

1.2

2.2

23.

24,

2.5.

4.2,

Buildingstars shall perform the “Cleaning Services,” as deflned in below in this Section 1.1, six (8) tima(s) per week
beginning the day of , 2019 at the following location: 735 Lathrop Avenue,
River Forast, llinois 60305. The premises at this location making up the working area under this Agreement ("Areas
Serviced") are further defined In the cleaning schedule, attached herato and by this reference made a part of this
Agresment ("Cleaning Schedula,” which together with the Areas Serviced are the “Cleaning Services").

Buildingstars agrees {o fumish, at its cost, all equipment, tools, and cleaning supplies necessary for the performance
of Its duties under this Agreement. The Customer shall provids, at Its cost, consumable supplies such as: toilet tissus,
hand towels, frash can liners and soap.

PAYMENT OF SERVICES
. Customer shall pay to Bulldingstars in full the amount set forth on the involce within the time required by the lllinois

Local Government Prompt Payment Act, 80 ILCS 505/1, ef seq., as amended. Past due invoices shall accrue
interest at the rate set forth in the lilinols Local Government Prompt Payment Act, as amended, until paid.

Customers serviced five (5) times per week or mare shall pay for the following six (8) major holidays, or days
designated as holidays: New Years Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, and
Christmas Day (togsther the “Holidays™). There shall bs no service rendered on these days nor will there be any
cradit on Customer's Invoice for these Holidays. If Customer requests services to be provided on any of these
Holidays, Customer wlll be charged the regular rate for the Holiday plus an extra fee of $___150.00 .

In the event any substantial changes are made in the number, size, character, appearance, or use of the Areas
Serviced by Customer, the rates for Bulldingstars services shall be increased by Buildingstars accordingly on a pro
rata basis, and Customer agrees to pay such increase. In the event It shall become necessary for Bulldingstars to
clean up after or during construction, remodeling, the work of craftsmen or tradesmen, vandallsm, burglary, or after
any other activity not normally conducted on the Areas Serviced, Customer shall be charged additional amounts, and
agrees to pay, for such service based on Buildingstars' then current pricing policies, which are attached hersto and
made a part hersof.

In the event payment of an Invoice is not recelved within the time required under the Jllinols Local Government
Prompt Payment Act, as amended, in addition to any other remedies avallable, Buildingstars may suspend services
to Customer unti! such paymaent is received.

Applicable sales or service taxes will be added to the Involce, where required by state and/or local jurisdictions.

. Buildingstars has the right to assign this Agreement, or any or all of its rights or obligations under this Agreement

including, but not limied to, it's cleaning obligations, to any of its franchisees,

. Customer agrees that during the term of this Agreement Customer will not employ or hira any employees, agents, or

representatives of Bulldingstars or Buildingstars’ franchisees to perform Cleaning Services without the express
written consent of Bulldingstars, which Bulldingstars may withhold for any reason.

JERM OF AGREEMENT: TERMINATION
. The term of this Agreement shall be for one (1) year from the date services are scheduled to begin, as stated in

Section 1.1, and may be extended and renewed for additional cne (1) year perlods on each anniversary date on the
same terms and conditions, if Customer gives written notice by ovemight or certified mall, as described hereln, of its
intent to renew the Agreement at least thirty (30) days prior to such anniversary date. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
Buildingstars shall have the right to immediately terminate this Agreement for Customer's breach of this Agresment,
and Customer shall have the right to terminate this Agreement for "Non-Performance” as defined below.

For purposes of this Agreement, "Non-Performance” is defined as Buildingstars’ failure, neglect, or refusal to perform
any item as outlined in the Cleaning Schedule.



5,
6.1.

52
6.3

54.

8.5.

5.8.

6.7.
58

GENERAL PROVISIONS

Bulidingstars shall not Incur any llablilty for fallure to provide services hereunder or prevented by Act of God, fire,
strike, riot, war, or any other cause beyond Bulldingstars’ control. Buildingstars shall not be responsible for loss of
Customer's property if placed in or on top of waste containers,

[Intentionally left biank]

All notices under this Agreement will be considered as duly given If in writing and elther hand delivered, sent by
courier, or sent by certifled mail, return recelpt requested, to the other party at its address set forth herein or to such
other address as may be designated by notice glven as herein required. All notices shall be effective when placed in
the United States mail or courler, or upon recslipt or refusal of dellvery (if personally delivered).

This Agresment and attachments constitutes the sole and entire agresment between the parties, and supersedes all
other bids or agreements between the parties, whether written or oral, relating to the subject matter hereof. There
are no covenants, assurances or representations, either express or Implled, other than those axpressly stated herein.
Except as otherwise expressly providad in this Agreement, no medlfication, resclssion or waiver of this Agreement, or
any provision thereof, shall be binding on either party uniess evidenced by an Instrument in writing duly signed by an
authorized offlcer or employee of such party.

The fallure of either party to insist In any ane or more instances upon performance of any of the provisions of this
Agreement or to take advantage of any of its rights hereunder, will not be construed as a waiver of any such
provisions or the relinquishment of any such rights and the same will continue and remain In full force and effect. No
gingle or partlal exercise by either party of any right or remedy will preclude other or further exercise thersof or the
exerclse of any other right or remedy.

This Agreement shall be construed, govemed, and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of lllinols. Any
legal action with respect to this Agreement shall be brought in the State courts of lllinols.

[Intentionally ieft blank]

This Agreement shall be binding upon, and Inure to the benefit of, the parties hereto and their respective legal and
personal representatives, estates, heirs and voluntary and Involuntary successors and permitted assigns.

ERICING SCHEDULE

12,704 sq. ft. serviced 6 times per week for a charge of: $1,999.00 monthly.

IN WITNESS WHEREOCF, the partles hersto have set their hands the day and year first above written.

Board of Library Trustees of tha Buildingatars Qparations, Inc.
Viliage of River Forast

By: By:
Signature Signature

Print Name and Title Print Name and Title




Equipment and Computer Use
A. Computer Hardware/Software/Printing

RFPL owns computers that are available for patron use. These computers require a
login with a current RFPL card in good standing. A limited number of guest passes may
be issued at any one time to non-residents. Some computers may be designated for use
by specific patron age groups. Patrons may not use another River Forest resident’s card
to circumvent any computer use policies, or to gain extra time on RFPL computers.
RFPL reserves the right to limit, refuse, and/or ban any patron from using RFPL
equipment and computers.

Public computers are configured such that hard drives are wiped and restored at the
end of each session. RFPL patrons may use portable storage devices to save and store
their data. Documents and data are not saved after a session ends,

There is a charge for printing from RFPL computers. At the discretion of RFPL staff,
RFPL patrons may use pergonal paper to print specialized documents such as resumes.
RFPL printers may not be compatible with all types of paper.

RFPL accepts no responsibility for the safety or security of any computer brought into
RFPL. Neither RFPL nor its staff shall be held liable for any loss arising from the use of
hardware, software, or from human error while at RFPL.

Computers and devices which are not owned by RFPL may only be connected to the
RFPL network by wireless connection, except for storage devices such as USB drives.
RFPL licensed software may not be installed on non-RFPL computers. Patrons are
prohibited from using personal software on RFPL computers and from downloading
software onto RFPL computers, RFPL computers include software to meet patron needs
of word processing, office applications, and Internet browsing. Software additions or
changes will be considered at the discretion of staff in consultation with the Director
and Managers. Software used to facilitate exam proctoring or other patron test taking
may be downloaded by RFPL staff, on a case by case basis, at the discretion of the
Manager of Adult Services.

RFPL staff members may provide assistance to patrons regarding the use of computers
as time and staff knowledge permit. Additional assistance may be available in the form
of computer classes.

B. Computer Usage/Internet

RFPL urges patrons to be informed consumers and carefully evaluate information
obtained via the Internet. RFPL staff members are not in a position to provide an
analysis of online sources.

RFPL makes reasonable accommodations to ensure the safety and security of our
networks for our patrons. Downloading information from the Internet and saving it for
personal use is at the risk of the user. Neither RFPL, nor its staff, shall be held liable



Computer Use
A. Computer Hardware/Software

RFPL software is not to be installed on non-RFPL computers, nor are non-RFPL
computers to be connected to RFPL’s network (with the exception of wirelesas
connections). RFPL accepts no responsibility for the safety or security of any computer
brought into RFPL. Neither RFPL nor ite staff shall be held liable for any loss arising
from the use of hardware, software, or from human error.

RFPL staff members are responsible for notifying RFPL Managers of any known failure
or security issue with RFPL hardware or software. Staff should inform RFPL Managers
if there are needed updates on their computers, or if they are seeking software
modifications on their workstations.

RFPL staff members are encouraged to save all documents to a shared drive or a
portable storage format. Staff members are advised that all documents created with the
use of an RFPL computer are property of RFPL.

B. Internet Usage

RFPL staff (with the exception of pages) are assigned a work email address and are
expected to check their email regularly while at work. Staff should not expect that their
electronic communications are confidential or private. RFPL staff members are advised
that all electronic communications originating with the use of an RFPL email account
are the property of RFPL. RFPL staff are expected to use good judgment when using the
Internet and refrain from excessive personal use. Unacceptable use of staff computers or
equipment may result in disciplinary action. RFPL reserves the right to monitor RFPL
email accounts and other electronic activities on RFPL computers or equipment.

RFPL assumes no responsibility for preventing or protecting users from accessing
systems, networks, and services that may contain material considered offensive to staff.
Accordingly, staff members should be aware that they might encounter messages,
materials, or graphics on the internet that they find to be offensive.

Use of RFPL’s computers must be for legal, acceptable purposes. RFPL staff should
refrain from unacceptable uses, including but not limited to:

o Harassment of others, including but not limited to sexual harassment;

¢ Defamation of others;

¢ Violation of copyright law;

» Violation of licensing or access agreements with online service providers;

e Violation of system security;

¢ Destruction, damage, or unauthorized modification to equipment, software, or data;



Administration

I attended the SWAN quarterly meeting on March 7th. Our 2020 membership fees
will increase by 12% to $24,019. SWAN expenses are not increasing, but there is a
decrease in RATLS funding support for SWAN. The grant amount each SWAN library
receives from RAILS Local Library Automation program (LLSAP grants) for
participating in a library consortia has decreased by 12% as new library consortiums
have formed in northern Illinois and the available RAILS grant funds are now being
spread across a larger pool of libraries.

Joanna attended the Community Manager’s Business meeting on March 6th and I
met with the other administrators of River Forest taxing bodies on March 12th.

Library trustees and library management will be emailed a link to complete their
Cook County Statement of Economic Interest form in the next month,

Staffing

We have welcomed 2 new part-time staff members in 2019. Emily Roth is our new
Children’s Library Associate and Larissa Pepke is our new Materials Services
Associate.

Sarah Udzielak’s last day at RFPL was March 2nd as she accepted a full-time
librarian position at the Indian Trails Public Library. We will be hiring a new
Library Associate to work 15 hours week in the Adult & Teen Services department.

Facilities

Joanna and Sue met with Andy Dogan and Brad Moser of Williams Architects on
February 28th, and then again on March 6th to discuss alternate design options for
the staff area remodel. Williams is confident that they can make some minor changes
to the configuration of the staff break room/rest room area and to the lighting in the
lobby in order to bring the cost of the project down significantly. Andy Dogan will
present the updated plan to the Board of Trustees at the March 19th meeting.

The library was closed on March 1st while the flue piping (that vents the boiler) was
replaced with new stainless steel piping. We removed the book sale shelves from the
lobby while we were closed.

We submitted the deposit to Verde Energy Efficiency Experts for the 2nd floor
lighting project in late February. We are waiting for approval from ComEd.

The fireplaces appeared to be malfunctioning in late February and we did not turn
them on for a few weeks while we waited for a very busy repairman from Southwest
Fireplace to inspect them. It was a battery issue with the automatic pilot and they
are back in service. We will keep them lit through the end of the month.

Hoday s,103d3.1Q

-
M
=3
—
=
sy
q

~
N
O
=

0




Finance

o We received $182,460 from first quarter property tax distributions in February.
Through March 14th, we have received $405,702 from the Cook County Treasurer.
CBOPREF has increased the interest rate on the Operating and Capital ICS accounts
from 1.25% to 1.4%.

o The 2019-20 Operating and Capital Budgets are included in the March packet. Total
budget amounts remain unchanged but line items have been adjusted in the
operating budget to reflect updated information.

Automation Expense reflects increase | +$2,5600.00
in annual SWAN membership fees.

Hoday s,J03liqg

Technical Support expenses have -$1,000.00
been decreased from $12,000 to
$11,000.

IMRF expense line has been -§500.00
decreased to reflect lower rate.

Maintenance supplies has been -$500.00
decreased.

Technology
¢ The new Bibliotheca self-check machine has arrived. We hope to have the machine in
service by early April.

Strategic Planning

» Joanna and I worked to incorporate trustee feedback during the February 19th Board
meeting into the strategic planning draft goals and objectives. A copy of the updated
document is included in the March Board packet for further discussion and input.

Marketing and Public Relations

e Meghan, Mary Kay and Fran have been working on the annual Celebrating Seniors
Week for the past month. RFPL hosted the photo shoot for the “60 over 60”
publication in our Meeting Room. We have a strong lineup of programs for the week
of May 2nd-9th and will have two ads in the print brochure. New this year, RFPL will
provide sponsorship for the “Pet Pals in the Park” program which will be held on
Saturday, May 3rd directly after the BlazeATrail 5K run/walk. Fran Arnold and
another library staff member will man a table at Keystone Park with handouts on
senior related services.

6tToz youep




Community Partnerships

On Tuesday, February 20th, I attended a meeting with administrators from District
90, District 97, District 200 at a session hosted by the Oak Park Public Library to
discuss opportunities for leveraging our work in equity with that of other
organizations and initiatives in our communities, communicating together about the
work we're doing, and providing additional opportunities for teachers and school
district leaders to be informed about library resources. At our next meeting,
scheduled for April 10, we will discuss how our individual organizations can best
participate within the OPRF Community Foundation's “Success of All Youth”
framework.

Joanna attended a session at the Oak Park River Forest Community Foundation
called “Beyond Diversity: Creating an Equitable and Inclusive Social Sector.” The
presenters, Nina D. Sanchez and Ian Martin, work for Enrich Chicago, a non for
profit that works to address racial equity in the arts. The session provided resources
for RFPL to complete a stakeholder analysis and assessment of our organization.

The library will once again partner with District 90 on their annual One District One
Book event. We have purchased multiple copies of the book The End of Average: How
we Succeed in a World that Values Sameness by Todd Rose and will promote the title
to our users, including our book discussion groups. Both of our children’s librarians
will be participating in the evening discussion session at Roosevelt Middle School on
Wednesday April 3rd, and an additional library staff member will assist elementary
school staff in providing on-site supervision and programming for any young children
who attend with their parents.

Respectively submitted,

Sue Quinn
March 13, 2019

&)
=-
™

A

H
O

1H
v

AJ
(D
©

o

 §

6tToz Yyoiep




February 2019 Key Performance Indicators

YTD
2018-

Last
YTD
2017-

Change

over

Total Circdation Feb-18 2019 2018 Last FY
Preschool Collection 3,228| 37,808| 34,427 10.1%
Juvenile Collection 4366] 49.345| 44,701 10.4%
Middle School Collection 406 5,661 5,603 -0.7%
Teen Collection 642 9,708 8,250 17.7%
Adult Fiction 3,888 42,970] 41,824 2.7%
Adult Non-Fiction 2933] 32.,619] 33,306 -2.1%
Adult Media 2,498| 29,314 30,539 -4,0%
Adult Other 160 1,898 1,728 9.8%
Non SWAN ILL 21 207 304 -31.9%
Webpac Renewals 46 456 3,382 -86.6%
Total Circulation 18,178| 209,976] 204,064 2.9%
Older Adults
Programs 11 83 94 -11.7%
Attendance 171 1,744 1,756 -0.7%
Middle School
Programs 11 116 110 5.6%
Attendance 130 2,617 2,823 -7.3%
Children/Family Programs
Programs 26 324 349 -7.2%
Elementary School Age Attendance 206 6,950 5,679 22.4%
Preschool Attendance 364 6,405 6,634 -2.0%
Other Programs
Programs 0 0 0 0.0%
Attendance 0 0 0 0.0%
Outside Groups
Barbara Hall Meeting Room Use 10| 144] 93]  54.8%]|

Cardholders & Visits

* RF Population is 11,172 Per 2010 Census Data

Monthly Visitors 6,987 | 78,213 | 82,506 -5.2%
New Cardholders Added 25 529 566 -4,.9%
Total Number Cardholders 8,289
Cardholders as % of Population™® T4%



WILLIAMS

ARCHITECTS

Architectura | Planning | Aquatics | Interiors

River Forest Public Library
Board of Trustees Report — March 2019

Following further analysis of the bids received for the project last month, our team has been working to
actively reduce costs for the project as discussed et the February 7 board meeting. We have met with Sue
and Joanna twice since early February to share ideas and potential changes to the plan that we belleve will
substantially reduce costs. A floor plan, images, and updated Estimate of Construction Cost are attached to
this Report.

Some of the items we have changed in the project in order to reduce costs are as follows:

e Allow for entrance to the library during construction through the meeting room. This will allow
contractors to perform more of the project in a single phase, accelerating the work and reducing
multiple mobilizations by contractors as would be required in a phased approach.

* Upon leaming of the costs of the cove lighting and pendant lighting products our engineer
specified, we have created an alternate ceiling and lighting design for the lobby and desk that uses
substantially less expensive fixtures while maintaining the overall iook and character of the
originally proposed project and maintaining quallty. We have also optimized other lighting fixtures
and placement throughout the staff area to realize further reductions in overall number of lighting
fixtures, which we believe will save significant costs.

* The new ceiling and lighting layout in the lobby greatly minimizes the need to perform mechanical
(HVAC) work in order to accommodate the new layout. (New, brighter ceiling tiles will still replace
the existing ceiling tile in the entire lobby)

= We have created an alternate layouit for the staff break room which will eliminate the need to move
the existing column currently near the restrooms. This will eliminate the need to remove the
existing column, temporarily shore the structure, create a new concrete footing, and provide a new
steel column. This will also eliminate the need to move and modify other elements overhead which
will realize even further savings.

» We have made minor adjustments in the design of the service desk, half-wall between the service
desk and circulation services manager workspace, lobby frim and paneling, and other buil-in
cablnets to reduce costs.

We believe these adjustments will result in anywhere between $60,000 and $100,000 of savings from the
bid results originally received, which will put the project on budget.

Additionally, we are recommending changing the project alternates in response to the new scope of work.
Previously, we received alternate bids for renovation of both staff restrooms, pendant lighting over the
desks, art glass windows in the lobby, and roller shades for existing windows. Based on the bid resuits
received, we believe that the Library would be better served to work directly with a window treatment
company to do new window treaiments, so we are recommending removing that portion of the work from
the project scope. The new pendant lights we are recommending are substantially less expensive, so we
suggest including them in the base bid. We do recommend maintaining altemates for the lobby art glass, a
drywall soffit above the new desk, and for renovation of the bathrooms. We plan to ask for separate pricing
to rencvate just one bathroom and both bathrooms to allow for greater flexibility based on bid resuits.

BOO Park Boulevard, Suite 200 ~ |tasce, |llinocis 80143 « P 630.221.1212 ¢ F 630.221.1220 » www.willlams-atchitects.com I l

Fi



Finally, we have modified our original cost estimate to account for these changes. Although we made some
quantity and unit price changes to account for the changes in design and market conditions, we have also
changed the general contractor overhead and profit markup fo 20 percent to account for contractors’
perceived complexity of the project. Further, we are maintaining a contingency allowance of $15,000 in the
contractor's bid and an additional owner's construction contingency of $15,000 to account for unforeseen
conditions during construction.

With regard to schedule, assuming these changes and scope are acceptable to the Board of Trustees we
plan to re-issue the project to bid at the end of this month with bids received at the end of April for
construction to start September 10 and conclude in November.

After speaking with professionals in the construction industry and our product vendors, we are confident
that these changes to the overall plan will result in an on-budget project that will achieve most (if not all) of
the original goals of the project. We look forward to further discussion at the Board meeting on Tuesday,
March 19.

Sincerely,

Aondeq

]

Andy Dogan
Associate Principal



— - i bt
N H /_ ro
- \‘ Sl | —
I O I 2 |
- L “E-
| X ——
= o A :
= | o 1
| ﬁ—\ 'I
a- ) L]
o | =
g )
=y wlm | B
AEEL

Ranoveiion Foer Plen

s omem e RIVET FOrest Public Library
TIBRARY Lobby & Staff Area Renovation

rr WILLIAMS




. el |

PROPOSED BASE BID — LOBBY AT ENTRANCE




M

— — o J—

e

PROPOSLD ALTERNATE BID —- LOBBY AT ENTRANCE




“ﬁ‘i\ =k

PROPOSED BﬁSE BID LOBBY AT DESH




:H_LL |n ':.'_ <-"-|\ i ....:"'i\‘__aiu
PROP’OSED ALTERNATF B]D LOBB‘I AT DESK




a0 |

" PROPOSED BASE BID — LOBBY TOWARDS ENTRANCE



; _+:'-ﬂ'k— \ : Ll
P ROPOE!ED PLLTERNATL BID — LO TOWARDS ENTRANCE




March 13, 2018

. | WILLIAVS
e B et sl [Eems

WAF, 2018030

By ARD
PRELIMINARY OPINION OF CONSTRUCTION COST - REVISED SCOPE
Term quantty ot §7unl Tulipier — subiotels Bl
0
1 Temporary consiruction partition 300 8F §7.00 1.2600 $2,848.00
2 Interior demoliionshaul-off 118 $ 10,000.00 1.2600 $12,6800.00
§16245
1 STEWORKEARTHWORK
1 None requirsd 0LS $0.00 1.2600 $0.00
50
2 FOUNDATIONS
1_None recuired oLs §0.00 1.2600 $0.00 o
%0
3 STRUCTURAL BTEEL
1 Nona mquired 0.00 LS $0.00 1.2600 $0.00
' 0
4 CARPENTRY
1 interior partitions (5/8" GWE, 3-5/8" mil stud, sound batt) 2,000 8F $10.00 1.26800 § 25,200.00
2 New doors and hardware 7L8 $1,500.00 1.2800 $13,230.00
3 Lay-in celling and grid - new areas 1,250 8F $5.00 12600 $7,875.00
4 Replacament cafling tile - kubby 800 8F $3.00 12600 $3,024.00
5 New drywall calings 26 BF §20.00 1.2600 $630.00
8 Wal and comer protection allowance 1,000 8F $1.50 1.2600 $ 1,880.00
7 New wood pansiing 100 SF $25.00 1.2800 $3,150.00
8 Fine extinguisher cabinets 2L8 $350.00 1.2600 $882.00
8 New solkd surface courteriops 32 8F $50.00 1.2800 §2,018.00
10 Code-requined signage 1L8 § 260.00 1.2800 §315.00
11 New tack surfaces and rim at display walls 250 8F $12.50 1.2800 $ 3,837.650
12 Misc. carpentry allowance 2,000 8F $200 1.26800 $5,040.00
13 New servico deak 1L8 §16,000.00 1.2600 $20,180.00
14 New basa cabinets 16 LF $350.00 1.2600 $7,056.00
15 New wall cabinats 18 LF §200.00 12600 $4788.00
§35,164
5 ROQEING
1 None reguired oLE $000 1.2600 $0.00
8 ALUMINUM/GLASSE
1 New clereatory giass at training room top of wall 80 SF $36.00 1.2600 §2,645.00
12,648
7 ELQORING
1 Floor preparation allowance 1,225 8F $200 1.2800 $3,087.00
2 Carpet tile (offices, work aneas, weliness room) 1,165 8F $5.00 1.2800 §7,390.60
— 3 Viny! tle fiooring (staf! lounge} 160 §F $1000 12800  $2,018.00
12,443
B PANTING
1 Intarior walls 3,600 8F 3200 1.2600 8082000
2 Interior cellings 300 SF $200 1.2600 $756.00




S
Date: HIVER FORELY PHRLIC LLIM
March 13, 2019 WI

Projsct  River Forsst Public Library VER EOUELY Py

WA 2018-038

By:

Pt Ploce Renoration LIBRARY ARCHITECTS

0 Pk Boviad, Bulle 808 P asean e
(X ] el n-dathibbcin b

ARD

PRELIMINARY OPINION OF CONSTRUCTION COST - REVISED SCOPE

—fam ______ quantly unlf  $/unkt multipiter subotsly =~ folals
[]
1 New drinking fountainbottia fiker at lablby 1L8 $ 5,000.00 1.2600 § 8,300.00
2 New rough plumbing to staff lounge 1L8 4 7,500.00 12800 $9,450.00
3 New sink & trim at siaff lounge 1L8 § 2,500.00 1.2600 $3,150.00
$18,800
10 HYAC
1 Gross area sliowsnce - duct rework and new megisters 1,250 8F $15.00 12800  $23825.00
2625
1
1 New lighting {gross area allowanca) 2,160 8F $13.00 12600 §35217.00
2 New wiring, power (grosa area allowance) 1,260 SF $10.00 12800  $15,750.00
3 Fire alarm system madifications 1,250 8F $3.00 1.2800 $4,725.00
4 Low vohage (data) wiring 1,250 BF $5.00 1.2800 $7.875.00
5 Sprinider system modifications 1,250 8F $5.60 12600 $ 8,682.50
$72.230
2 CONSTRUCTION TOTAL $2523,689
2.5 CONTINGENCY ALLOWANCES INCLUDED IN BASE BID $18,000
BASE BID TARGET $268,859
 CONTINGENCIES ANDFEES
1 Gensnal Contractor Overhead & Profit 20.0% 1.2000 - Included In multipller sbove
2__Design Contingancy 50% 1.0600 - Included in muktiplier above
4 ALLOWANCE FOR NEW FURNITURE, WINDOW TREATMENTS, AND WALL GRAPHICS (PURCHASED/BID 8EPARATELY) $ 32,000
§ TOTAL PROJECT COST - CONSTRUCTION + FURNITURE $§ 300,888
& WLLIAMB ARCHITECTS FEE NOT YET INVOICED $8,465
7 OWNER'S CONSTRUCTION CONTINGENCY §15,000
8 TOTAL PROJECT BUDGET $324.314
9 RECOMMENDED ALTERNATES
1 Drvwall 10ffi above desk & surraunding clg repiacerment 118 $4,500.00 1.2800 $5,670.00
2 Remodeling of one bathroom 1L8 § 5,000,00 1.2800 $6,500.00
3 Remodeling of both bathrooms (in adidition to alt #2) 1EA #5,000.00 12800 1$6,300.00
4 Art giass windows and trim 1.8 $ 3,000.00 12800 §3,780.00
10 TOTAL PROJECT BUDGET WITH ALTERNATES $348,364

1) This opinicn of construciion cost sssumws n genen contrctar bid sosnaric With ot least five bidders bidding In Aprll 2018. Fewer bidders will affeot results.

) Thin opinion of consiruction cost represanta the Amhiteols epinion of costs based on the ssope of this project and recent bid results. It s not 8 QUEMUTe o WRITARlY of sosts ae
Incresssa In material and iabor costs mey accur betwesn how and the ims of bidding that ane beyond the Arohitect’s control.

%) Costa of any renmedistion of hazardous matariels, I discovared, sre not included In this setimats.

4}  Moving of Owner's fumiture to termporary oficaideak looation ls not Included In thia estimare,
Thia opinloh of eohebuotion oost sssumss a phasing soenwric In which the mesting roon Wil be used es the sninencs dising comstruction, the mesting reom will

L] ba wiikzed ae temporary staff office apace while construction occurs, and thet m temporry desk will be created to serve petrons while the project Is under
conetruclion, Any edditionsl phasing requirsd will result In addifonal costs stibutable & Moving and temparary protaction from construction work.



PeINq pue 8je|dwod %05
Peiiiq pue ajejdwo? %001
Pellig pue eje|dwo) %001
Palliq pue ejajdwod %001

0070002

$
£9'L15°0E $
61'£08°'2 $
85°00€') $
L0'¥0L'6 $
67'€08'L $
00°00S'¥y $

WnWixey ejqesinquiey

UORENSIUIIPE UORONIISUOY)

suonjeqoBen ¥ Buippig

SJUSLLNOOP UORONASUOYD)

juawdojeaep ubiseq

ubisep opBWOYDS ‘1251102 BIEP ‘JO-4ODY

uopejdwon unowry ejqe|ig :seseyd Bujug
$ s8r9ck's $ Pamo |IBS
00°000'2 $ Se've0ce $ :8jep o} pred [gj0)
%0S buIppIa “%5Z SjuSlINIop uononNsuoy)| /6°/62 $ | vESIY'L $ 1£°942'8| swejyary SWelim| 61L0Z/SL/50
%SG¢Z 'sjuewunoop uoRongsuod| |2'see $ | 209.2'2 $ €2°119'7| soapyory swellip] 6102/90/20
%001 ‘Wuewdoleaap ubiseq| 0g'g01 $ | ¥reov's $ ¥2°11G'G| senuyoly swelllim| eLog/6LZL
%0¢ "Juewdojenep ubisaq| 66'z1L1L $|S0LvE' $ YO¥S¥'2| sioenyoly swelllipm| 8102/80/21L
%00} ‘ubisep opewsyos ‘Joeljoo ejeq "LO-Xoni| 0119 $ | 00°052°2 $ OL'LLE'Z] sioepyary swelllip] 8102/L0/LL
%05 'ubjsep peweyos 10ajj0d Bje(] ‘Ho-%oni| 1LE°281 $ | 00006 $ 1£°280°1| S1os)yary swelpm| 8102/81/60
%0¢ 'ubjsep opeweLds ‘Joejioo ejeq "Jo-3on| Z1-9ee $ | 00'0SE°L $ ZL'989°L| sloelyory swelllipm| 810z/22/80
sosuedxy| €004 S0dlAleS
eseyd Bujig e|qesinquijey [euoissajoid junowy [liga elIeN ajeq




MEMO

To: RFPL Board of Trustees
From: Sue Quinn, Library Director
Joanna Bertucci, Materiale and Business Services Manager
Date: March 14, 2019
RE: Updates to draft Strategic Plan

We are attaching a second draft -- Strategic Plan 2.0-- for Trustee Review

We have worked to incorporate the Library Trustee feedback provided during the
first round of discussions at the February 19, 2019 Board meeting.

» Removed the potential "action steps” from the draft as it was noted that the
document was very wordy. The action steps will be in our internal staff
working doc--but not the one we share out.

» Added in the ways that we might measure objectives.

L

Combined the equity, diversity and inclusivity language into the first goal
of Engaging the Community

Worked "collections" (a community survey emphasis) into other goals.

Added in a goal about learning and growth with breakouts by audience,
thereby allowing us to specifically address library focus on early literacy
and service to children.

Some of the objectives in draft 2.0 are not new initiatives --but things we
will "continue" to focus on delivering, There was concern expressed by
Trustees that we would discontinue current programs or partnerships as
they were not listed in the previous draft. By including "continue"
objectives, it allows us to share out what we already do for those that might
not know that we have things like technology training, et al and it
acknowledges that certain programs require a lot of staff time and will
continue to be a core objective.

We look forward to continued discussion with Trustees as we craft a new Strategic
Plan that will accurately define RFPL priorities and orient our work for the coming
years.



Strategic Plan 2019-2022 Goals and Objectives
(2.0 Draft)
March 14, 2019

Priority 1: Community Engagement
RFPL offers library programs and services to promote strong connections in our community.

Engagement Objective 1: RFPL actively engages with community groups In support of shared goals.

Actions

o Develop new programs, collections and a frained staff to support our Village's designation as
Dementia Friendly Community

o Create comprehensive campaigns for National Library Card Sign Up month to generate more
users and build relationships with local businesses through the recently launched “show your
card” program.

o Participate in one new offsite event annually where library services can be promoted and library
card sign-up can be offered.

o Sustain partnershlp with the River Forest Park District and Forest Preserve of Cook County to
offer large scale off-site programing for children and their families.

o Continue to visit the D90 schools to promote library card usage and participation in the summer
reading program

o Maintain partnership with RF Township to promote services and deliver programming to our
senior population.

o Continue to participate in Success of All Youth to support the development of our youth.

Engagement Objective 2: RFPL promotes and provides for local opportunities for clvic engagement
and discourse.

Actlons

o Expand partnerships with local organizations to enrich our program offerings around civic
engagement,

o Connect with local organizations via social media channels and cross promote events and
services.,

o Maintain programs that explore matters of global impact and seek out additional programming
opportunities on this topic.

o Continue to offer meeting room space to community groups and list their programs on our
library calendar.

Engagement Objective 3: RFPL demonstrates the principles of diversity, equity, and inclusion within
our collections and programs.

Actlons
o Develop collections and displays that showcase a diversity of voices.
o Offer early literacy and children’s programming at times accessible to working parents and
caregivers.



o Actively seek high quality program performers and lecturers who offer diverse views and voices.
o Create promotional materials that reflect diversity.

o Identify underserved segments of the community and develop ways to connect them with library
services.

Engagement Objective 4: Our policles and internal operating procedures reflect equlitable practices.

Actions

o Conduct a systematic review of patron and staff policies through an equity lens

o Recruit, hire and retain a diverse staff workforce.

o Partner with other libraries, D90 school district and/or other community organizations to share
staff training and best practices for reducing implicit bias and creating inclusive practices within
our organization.

o Support D80s commitment to equity and inclusivity initiatives by purchasing supporting
materials for community reading/viewing and participating in the annual One District One Book
program.

o Continue to provide a safe space and caring adult presence for children in the library during out
of school hours.

Tools to Measure Success

¢« Meeting room use
Program attendance
Contacts with partner groups
Employee satisfaction survey
New Cardholders

Priority 2: Learning and Personal Growth
RFPL’s collections, programs and services support the Iifelong learning goals of all users and stimulate
enjoyment of reading, listening, and viewing.

Learning Objective 1: RFPL’s early literacy offerings support families so that young children arrive at
kindergarten ready for formal learning.

Actions
o Develop a 1000 Books Before Kindergarten program to increase awareness of early literacy and
promote library offerings to new parents
o Maintain a variety of storytime offerings inside and outside of the library
o Continue to provide space and toys for play, leamning and discovery in our Children's Room



o]

Sustain and nurture partnerships with other chiid-serving agencies to offer resources for parent
education.

Learning Objective 2: RFPL’s collections and programs for school age children (K-12) stimulate
enjoyment of reading, listening and viewing.

0
o

¢}

Actions

Install additional face-out shelving in Children's room and other locations to promote browsing.
Develop and promote staff-curated sets/kits of children’s books for families looking to access a
selection of books quickly.

Maintain strong collections designed to delight children.

Continue to offer Summer Reading programs for children from birth-18.

Sustain after school and summer program offerings for Middle School Children during the week
for creative expression and appreciation of literature.

Learning Objective 3: RFPL's services, collections, and programs support the enjoyment of reading,
the lifelong learning and skill development of adults.

o]

o)
o
o}

&)

Actions

Encourage and respond to user requests for materials and programs.

Promote and expand home delivery service

Provide support and staff expertise to community book groups.

Sustain partnership with RF Township to meet the needs of our growing senior population
including social and cultural programming and technology training

Evaluate current digital collections and explore opportunities to provide new streaming services.
Curate and promote Memory Kits to encourage interaction between dementia patients and their
caregivers

Continue to offer educational, cultural and reading-related programs

Maintain digital and physical collections in reiation to demand.

Tools to Measure Success

Circulation statistics

Program attendance/participation
Partner feedback

Patron feedback



Goal 3: Optimize Space
RFPL makes the most effective use of our library building, garden, and online presence to deliver library
services and support the needs of our community.

Space Objective 1: RFPL continues to maximize existing spaces to meet user needs.

Actlons

(o]

©
o)
O

e}

o]

Improve layout of the children’s room that will better suit the needs of our various collections.
Improve holds pickup area and materials display in lobby.

Designate specific areas inside the library for strolier parking.

Continue to review and reevaluate procedures and spaces to promote a positive library
environment in the after school hours.

Maintain use of the Library garden for seasonal programming.

Continue to upgrade equipment in accordance with the Capital Asset replacement plan.

Space Objective 2: Evaluate opportunities for enhancements that our budget will allow.

Actions

[+]

(o]
(o]
o]
o]

Upgrade lighting and HVAC equipment to be more energy efficient
Explore opportunities for creating quiet, private study/meeting space.
Create a small space for eating light snacks.

Replace obsolete furniture with flexible, lightweight, modular furnishings.
Purchase new tables with built-in charging stations

Space Objective 3: Have a strong online presence that connects the library to the community.

Actions

[+]
[+]

Maintain a high quality website that is current, easy to use and mobile friendly.

Implement a new library calendar system that will be more user friendly and will streamline the
program registration and meeting room use requests.

Evaluate current social media trends and their potential for connecting us to and bringing in
more users.

Develop new methods to strategically communicate the library's resources, services, and
programs to different user populations.

Continue to advocate for upgrades to the SWAN catalog.

Tools to Measure Success
« Circulation statistics

Patron visits

Patron satisfaction

Meeting room use

Social media engagement statistics



River Forest Public Library Budget 2019-20

General Fund for Operatlon Budget 2018-19 |Budget 2019-20
Revenues
Property Taxes, for operating $ 1,270,000.00 |  $1,289,000.00|
Connections Program $  7,800.00 $8,000.00]
Corp. Property Replacement Tax $  14,000.00 $12,000.00]
Fines Service Charges( Includes e-commerce) $ 7,000.00 $0.00]
Lost Books Relmbursed $  3,000.00 $3,000.00|
Book Sale $ 500.00 $0.00|
Copy Machine Revenues 5 4,000.00 $4,400.00
Rentals-Library Space $ 300.00 $300.00
Interest $  12,000.00 $10,000.00}
Glfts $  12,000.00 $2,000.00|
llinols Per Capita Grant $  8,600.00 $14,000.00}
Grants, Other $  4,000.00 $3,000.00|
Community Fund Endownment distribution $ 3,300.00 $3,200.00|
Miscellaneous Income $ 500.00 $100.00
o . $ 213471000100 1$113/345/500.66)
I
Wages & Salarles $ 685,000.00 $703,000.00
Medlcal Health Insurance Coverage $  56,000.00 $56,000.00
IMRF $  57,000.00 $49,500.00
FICA, Medicare $  53,000.00 $54,000.00]
Staff Training and Recognitions $ 3,000.00 $2,000.00|
Membership Dues $ 3,400.00 $3,100.00]
Professional Development $  10,000.00 $8,400.00
64.4% 64.9%
Support Services
Printing and Advertising
Printing (Bookplate) S 5,000.00 $5,500.00|
Advertisement 3 3,000.00 $3,000.00]
Total Printing and Advertising 8 8,000.00 S 8,500.00
Programming '
Children's Programs $  12,000.00 $12,000.00
Teen Programs $ 7,000.00 $7,000.00
Adult Programs $ 10,000.00 $9,000.00
Special Programs S 2,000.00 $2,000.00]
ASK/Connections Programs ] $8,000.00
Total Programs S 38,000.00
| 3.5% 3.4%
Other Support Services
ILL and RB Services $ 800.00 $400.00
Technical Support {IT) $  12,000.00 $11,000.00
Automatlon - SWAN / RAILS and Wehbsite $  32,500.00 $36,500.00]
Consultant / Legal $ 6,000.00 $7,000.00]
Postage & Delivery $ 3,600.00 $3,600.00]
Audit $ 7,000.00 $7,000.00]




|

| |
[ ot FacliitesiManagemant

75%

Payroll and employment services $ 3,000,00 $3,500.00]
Youth Interventionist Contract $ 4,600.00 $4,000.00]
Telephone/Internet $  14,500.00 $14,500.00
Trustee Training and memberships ] 1,000.00 $1,000.00
Copy Machine Leases (pub and nonpub) $ 2,500.00 | $2,500.00
“mn Total Other Support Servies u ~$ 87,500.00 $  191,00000]
| 6.5% 6.7%
Library Materials
Books $ 72,500.00 $74,500.00|
Print Periodicals S 6,500.00 $6,500.00]
Automated Subscriptions (Online learning, research) $  15500.00 $12,500.00}
Online E-content {MOD, Flipster, hoopla) 5 54,000.00 $58,800.00
In-House Audio Visual {DVD's, CD's, audiobooks) $  33,000.00 $29,200.00
Total Library Materials $ 181,500.00 $ 181,500.00
I 13.5% 13.5%
Materials and Supplles
Office Suppllas $ 4,200.00 | $ 4,000.00
Library Supplies $ 5,000.00 | $ 5,000.00
Copy And Printing Supplies [ 1,300.00 | § 1,000.00
Misc Expenses $ 2,500.00 | $ 2,500.00
Total Library and Office Suppiles $  13,000.00 § 12,500.00
 Total Library Materials and Supplies ~'$| 194,500.00/ $  154,000.00
©14.9% 14.7%
 Strategic Initiatives. ~$ 15,0000 $5,000.00|
0.4% 0.4%
Facilities Management
Facllity Supplies
Bullding Materials & Supplles $ 4,800.00 | $ 3,500.00
1\ Total Faciiity Supplles| - 8§ 480000 '$  3,500.00
Faclllty Services
Insurance S 11,000.00 $11,500.00]
Maintenance and Custodlal Services $  60,000.00 $60,000,00]
Water $ 2,000.00 $2,000.00}
Natural Gas $ 9,000.00 $9,500.00|
Copler Mzintenance and Usage $  2500.00 $2,500.00|
~ Total Facllitles Services § 84500000/ $  85,500/00,
Equiment & Furniture*
Equipment & Furniture $ 10,000.00 $13,000.00]
Technology misc. $ 1,500.00 $2,000.00]
Equipment & furniture—-paid from Cap. Expenditures |
. Total Equipment and Furnlture S 11,500.00 $ 15,000.00/

96.7% 97.6%
Levy for capital Improvement fund (minlum of 2.5% of tax revenues) $ 45,000 $32,500.00|

Total

$! 1,347,000.00 $ 1,349,000.00




River Forest Public Library Budget 2019-20

Budget Projected Budget
Capital Improvement Fund 2018-19 2018-19 2019-20
Revenues *
Donations 0| $ 80,000.00
Minimum of 2.5% of projected tax recelpts for FY 20 of $ 31,075.00|$ 32,500.00
Excess of revenues over expenditures for fiscal year 0| $ 30,000.00 [ $ 20,000.00
Total Revenues 0| $ 61,075.00 | $ 132,500.00
Expenses
Staff Area/Lobby Remodel $ 350,000.00 | $ 24,700.00 | $ 340,000.00
Other Building Improvements S 26,000.00|$ - S -
Children's Room Shelving Project S - S - S 65,000.00
HVAC component replacement $ 5,00000]|S$ 4,820.00($ 20,000.00
Engineering plans for Air Handler unit S - $ 40,000.00
Technology $ 35,000.00|$17,500.00[$ 17,500.00
Security Camera Installation $ 10,000.00|$ - |$ 3,500.00
Contingency for unplanned upgrade opportunities and/or
emergency repairs $ 10,000.00 | $ 12,496.00 | $ 15,000.00
Total Capital Expenses $ 436,000.00 | $59,516.00 | $ 501,000.00
Capital Improvement Fund reserves to cover excess
e expenses over revenues in 2018-19 and 2019-20.
* Revenues not budgeted in 2018-19.
3/14/2019




LACONI TRUSTEE
BANQUET

FRIDAY, MAY 10, 2019
6:00 - 9:00 PMm

HOTEL ARISTA
2139 CITY GATE LANE
NAPERVILLE, IL 60563

0

WITH FEATURED SPEAKER
REBECCA VNUK
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AT
LIBRARYREADS DISCUSSING
"LIBRARIANS AS INFLUENCERS"

[ICKETS AVAILABLE
ON EVENTBRITE FOR
$65 PER PERSON WITH A CASH BAR
MEAL OPTIONS INCLUDE:
GRILLED FLAT IRON STEAK, SALMON.
OR PARMESAN GNOCCHI

QUESTIONS? CONTACT KATE BUCKSON
KATEBALPLIBRARY.ORG
708-352-0100

.




